[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

CITY or . . .
woLvirnameron | AUdIt and Risk Committee
COUNCIL 21 June 2021

Time 2.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Regulatory

Venue Council Chamber

Membership

Chair Clir Alan Butt (Lab)

Vice-chair Cllr Jonathan Yardley (Con)

Labour Independent Member
Clir Mary Bateman Mr Mike Ager

Clir Philip Bateman MBE Mr John Humphries

ClIr Craig Collingswood
Clir Clare Simm

Conservative

Clir Andrew McNeil

Quorum for this meeting is two Councillors.

Information for the Public

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:

Contact Fabrica Hastings
Tel/Email Tel: 01902 552699 or Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website https://wolverhamptoninternet.moderngov.co.uk
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Tel 01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording and use of social media in meetings, copies of
which are displayed in the meeting room.

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.


mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda

Part 1 — items open to the press and public

Item No.

Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS

Apologies for absence
Declaration of interests

Minutes of the previous meetings (Pages 3 - 10)
[For approval]

Matters arising
[To consider any matters arising from the minutes]

DECISION ITEMS

5

10

Accounting Estimates for the West Midlands Pension Fund (Pages 11 - 12)
[To receive a presentation on accounting estimates for the West Midlands Pension
Fund.]

Assessment of Going Concern Status (Pages 13 - 22)
[To receive an update on the assessment of going concern status.]

Review of Compliance with the CIPFA Financial Management Code (Pages 23
- 50)

[To receive an update on the review of compliance with CIPFA financial
management code.]

Annual Governance Statement (Pages 51 - 68)
[To receive the annual governance statement.]

Grant Thornton 2019 - 2020 Annual Audit Letter (Pages 69 - 100)
[To receive an update from the external auditors, Grant Thornton.]

Grant Thornton 2020 - 2021 Audit Plan (Pages 101 - 132)
[To receive an update from the external auditors, Grant Thornton.]



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

wowviar on |Audit and Risk Committee

councit  |Minutes - 8 March 2021 ~ AgendaltemNo:s

Attendance
Members of the Audit and Risk Committee

Clir Alan Butt (Chair)

Cllr Jonathan Yardley (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Mary Bateman

CliIr Philip Bateman MBE

Clir Craig Collingswood

Cllr Roger Lawrence

Clir Barbara McGarrity QN

Cllr Lynne Moran

Mike Ager

John Humphries

Employees
Emma Bland Finance Business Partner
lan Cotterill Audit Business Partner

Peter Farrow
Fabrica Hastings
Alison Hinds
Jaswinder Kaur
Claire Nye

David Pattison
Hayley Reid
Alison Shannon
Kirsty Tuffin
Mark Wilkes

In attendance

Fiona Hollingworth

Mathew Kitson
Minesh Parmar
Jon Roberts
Martin Wilson

Head of Audit

Democratic Services Assistant
Deputy Director — Social Care
Democratic Services Manager
Director of Finance

Director of Governance

Senior Auditor (Risk)

Chief Accountant

Democratic Service Officer
Audit Business Partner

JLL
Bruton Knowles
JLL
Grant Thornton
Bruton Knowles

Part 1 — items open to the press and public
Iltem No. Title

1 Apologies for absence
There were no apologies for absence.

2 Declaration of interests
Councillor Lynne Moran declared an interest as a member of the WV Homes Board
of Trustees.

Page 3



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes of previous meetings
That the minutes of the previous meetings held on 26 November 2020 and 7
December 2020 be approved as a correct record.

Matters arising

Following a query as per item 3, resolution 3 of the minutes of the previous meeting
held on 7 December 2020, it was confirmed that Alison Hinds, Deputy Director for
Social Care would be in attendance at the meeting to discuss the safeguarding of
children.

Please note: it was agreed to move item 9, Covid-19 Risk Register and Strategic
Risk Register, for discussion following item 5, External Audit Progress Report and
Update.

External Audit Progress Report and Update

Jon Roberts, External Auditor — Grant Thornton, presented the report on the External
Audit Progress Report and advised that he would be replacing Mark Stocks as the
Council’s external Auditor lead.

The Committee were advised that work had been underway to complete the
Government consolidation packs that would allow Grant Thornton to grant
certification of the Councils Audit 2010-2020. One of the main changes highlighted
had been a revised approach to value for money work for 2020-2021 and the revised
auditing standards. The value for money work included three 3 areas of focus for
auditors to include in their analysis:

1. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness,

2. Financial sustainability,

3. Governance.

A detailed fee analysis would be brought to the next Committee meeting. Following
concerns on the increased fees, Jon Roberts reassured Members that the changes
would be more demanding and the increase in fees would be used to cover
increased resources and would not be profit led.

Resolved:
1. That the Progress Report and Update provided by Grant Thornton, be noted.

External Audit - Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2020-2021
Jon Roberts, External Auditor — Grant Thornton, presented the report on the External
Audit - Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2020-2021.

The Committee were advised that Under International Standards on Auditing (UK),
(ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit and
Risk Committee and the inquires outlined in appendix 1, fall under these auditing
standards. Following questions on the number of consultants and use of barristers,
Members were reassured that external barristers are used for childcare court cases,
litigation and regeneration projects. It was agreed that further information on this,
trends on using them and the costs incurred for using external consultants, would be
provided.

Resolved:

1. That the report from the erggra:&l %Jditors, Grant Thornton, be considered.



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2. That it be agreed that further information on the use of external consultants,
trends of use and the costs incurred would be brought to a future Committee
meeting.

Accounting Estimates
Emma Bland, Finance Business Partner, provided a presentation on key accounting
estimates that would be included in Council’s financial statements this year.

The Committee were advised that accounting policies and accounting estimates
were used to ensure that the accounting data within financial statements was valid
data. Accounting policies are standard rules and procedures that must be used by
the Council and accounting estimates are used when these clear-cut standards are
not available. The Director of Pensions would be in attendance at the next
Committee meeting to discuss the defined benefit pension liability. The Committee
were advised that the audit standard ISA 540 had been revised and had increased
focus from regulators on estimates the Council makes and required an
understanding of the internal control on the accounting estimates.

Martin Wilson and Mathew Kitson, representatives from Bruton Knowles, provided a
presentation on asset valuations used for the Council. The Committee were advised
that Bruton Knowles had conducted asset valuations for the Council’s commercial
portfolio. The four types of assets outlined were:

1. Operational non-specialised

2. Operational specialised

3. Non-operational non-specialised

4. Non-operations specialised.

Examples of operational assets included; leisure centres, community centres,
museums and the civic centre. The examples outlined for non-operational assets
included; surplus assets, assets held for sale and investment properties. The asset
type would dictate what method of valuation would be used and the four methods
included:

1. Comparable method

2. Investment

3. Income/profits

4. Depreciated replacement cost (DRC).

Fiona Hollingworth and Minesh Parmar, representatives from JLL, provided a
presentation on HRA Valuation Services that outlined the basic principles, the
framework and methodology used. The Committee were advised that the market
value of a property would be used in all valuations conducted and for social housing,
existing use value would be used. The two frameworks outlined were the ‘stock
valuation for resource accounting guidance for values 2016’, published by MHCLG,
and the ‘RICS Valuation — Global Standards 2017’, published by the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors.

The Committee were advised that the beacon approach was used by JLL for up to
98% of the Councils stock, which divides the stock into asset groups and then
categorises into different archetypes. The remaining 2% of the stock would be looked
at individually. The following methods would also be used when assessing market
values:

1. Land registry data

2. Bespoke online tools

Page 5



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3. Local experience and knowledge of the area
4. Understanding on local market dynamics and,
5. Phone calls with estate agents.

For all valuation advice provided a material uncertainty clause (MUC) would be
incorporated, in line with the RICS guidance, and the steps to mitigate risks were
outlined. It was agreed that the slides shared in the meeting be shared with Members
of the Committee.

Resolved:
1. That the presentations provided by the Council and the Council’s external
valuers: Bruton Knowles and JLL be noted.
2. That it be agreed that the slides shared in the meeting be shared with
Members of the Committee.

Accounting Estimate Management Summary
Jon Roberts, External Auditor — Grant Thornton, presented an update on the External
Audit - Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2020-2021.

The Committee were advised that to meet the requirements for the revised ISA 540
auditing regulations, the Council had responded to questions raised by Grant
Thornton on their key estimates, as per appendix 1 of the report. It was highlighted
that although, external professional companies were used to generate the Council
property and pensions estimates, these were the biggest risk to the Council in the
risk assessment for 2020-2021. To mitigate the risk, Grant Thornton advised the
Committee that data would be an essential element in getting accurate estimates.
Grant Thornton and their valuers would be used to challenge the Council and their
valuations. Praise was given on good practice from the Council in inviting the
Council’s valuers to Committee.

Resolved:
1. That the report of the external auditors, Grant Thornton, be considered.

Covid-19 Risk Register and Strategic Risk Register

Hayley Reid, Senior Auditor (Risk), presented an update on the

Strategic Risk Register and a Covid-19 Risk Register. The update detailed the risks
faced by the Council as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and, the latest summary of
the Council’s Strategic Risk Register as at Appendix 1 and 2.

The Committee were advised that 19 risks were included on the covid risk register,
the following six of those were rated ‘red’:

Businesses closing

Reputation/loss of public confidence

Medium Term Budgetary pressure

Service providers — adults

Impact on on-going projects and programmes

Rise in unemployment

ok wNE

The Strategic Risk Register included 16 risks, that had one risk rated ‘red’:
1. Medium term financial strategy.

Following questions, David Pattison, Director of Governance, clarified that the delays
as per Covid risk 17 (impact on 0ing projects and programmes), had been
p (imp Ciﬂggqu J prog )



10

11

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

minimal and regular covid testing and health and safety measures were in place on
work sites. It was agreed that an update on the impact of covid on key projects and
the financial on the projects, be brought to a future Committee meeting.

Alison Hinds, Deputy Director for Social Care, reassured the Committee that the
regular reports were received on all referrals made through MASH, the level of risk to
children and the outcomes of these referrals. The Council worked with partners
through the Wolverhampton Safeguarding Together Board that scrutinise the
information on referrals. January saw an increase in referrals that were to be
managed through the child protection policies. Individuals seeking help/guidance
from external organisations had increased since lockdown, this was usually low level
and often occurs before a formal referral would be made that would require
investigating/police intervention.

Resolved:

1. That the Council’s Covid-19 risk register which details the risks faced by the
Council as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, as at Appendix 1, be noted.

2. That the latest summary of the Council’s Strategic Risk Register, as at
Appendix 2, be noted.

3. That the verbal update on the Covid Risk 4 — Safeguarding Children from the
Deputy Director for Social Care, be noted.

4. That it be agreed that details on the impact of covid on key projects and the
financial cost of covid on the projects, be brought to a future Committee
meeting.

Audit and Risk Committee - Terms of Reference
Peter Farrow, Head of Audit presented the report on the revised terms of reference
for the Audit and Risk Committee that is review annually

The Committee were advised that ahead of the CIPFA review, the terms of reference
had been updated to include accounting estimates as part of its financial section that
would be beneficial to the Committee.

Resolved:
1. That the terms of reference for the Committee in line with recognised best
practice, be approved.

Internal Audit Update

Peter Farrow, Head of Audit presented the report on the progress made against the
2020 - 2021 internal audit plan and provided information on recent work that had
been completed.

The Committee were reminded that due to a significant amount of audit resources
redeployed to focus on critical work surrounding the impact of covid-19, some audit
reviews had been deferred and would be included in the next internal audit plan
where appropriate.

The Committee were advised that the audit team were working with procurement
following a review that saw concerns around the maintenance of procurement
records, although reassurance was provided that no legislation had been breached.
Recommendations for improvement had been agreed with John Thompson, Head of
Procurement, and improvements were being put in place. A follow up review would
be conducted in 2022.

Page 7



12

13

14

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Resolved:
1. That the contents of the latest internal audit update as at the end of quarter
three, be noted.

Internal Audit Plan 2021-2022

Peter Farrow, Head of Audit presented the report on the Internal Audit Plan 2021-
2022 that provided the Committee with a risk-based internal audit

plan, incorporating a strategic statement for internal audit, and based upon an
assessment of assurance needs.

The Committee were advised that a number of deferred audits from the previous
2020-2021 plan had been included in the 2021-2022 audit plan where appropriate.

Following questions on payment of grants, Peter Farrow reassured members that
over 4,000 grants had been processed so far and tools had been used such as the
Government recommended ‘Spotlight’ RAG

rating tool and NFI to run background checks and validate data on those applying for
the grants. Councillor Lynne Moran requested that the grants for Early Years be
monitored.

Praise was given to Peter Farrow and the Team on the work they had conducted.

Resolved:
1. That the risk based internal audit plan for 2021-2022 be approved.

CIPFA Audit Committee Update

Peter Farrow, Head of Audit presented the report on the CIPFA Audit Committee that
focused on the Head of Audit Opinion, the

Redmond Review and a regular briefing on current issues.

The Committee were advised that the two issues highlighted in the update had been
the Redmond Review, that Grant Thornton had already provided a detailed update
on at the previous meeting, and the amount of work audit teams in public sectors had
spent on their internal audit plans. Members were asked to contact Member Services
if they wished to be booked onto any of the training programmes offered by CIPFA. It
was agreed that confirmation on the budget position for training for Members be
brought to the next Committee meeting.

Resolved:

1. That the contents of the latest CIPFA Audit Committee Update which has a
focus on the Head of Audit Opinion, the Redmond Review and a regular
briefing on current issues, be noted.

2. That it be agreed that confirmation on the budget available for training be
brought to the next Committee meeting.

Counter Fraud Update
Mark Wilkes, Audit Business Partner presented the update report on current counter
fraud activities undertaken by Audit Service since the last meeting.

The Committee were advised that work had been ongoing for the allocation
of small business grants, discretionary grants and hospitality grants by Government
to assist with the impact of the demig. Following post payment checks, 24

Y pﬁpage% g post pay



15

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

invoices had been raised against businesses, two of which had started their
repayments to the Council. Debt recovery measures would be used on businesses
where required. Details of any further action would be brought to Committee if
required.

Resolved:
1. That the contents of the latest Audit Services Counter Fraud Update be noted.

Payment Transparency
Mark Wilkes, Audit Business Partner presented the report on the Council’s current
position with regards to the publication of all its expenditure.

The Committee were advised that no armchair auditor requests had been received in
the last quarter. A query raised on payments for nurseries had identified that data
had been added incorrectly but Committee were reassured that the data had been
corrected.

Resolved:

1. That the Council’s current position with regards to the publication of all its
expenditure be noted.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 5

CITY or . . :
woLvirnameron |AUdIt and Risk Committee
COUNCIL 21 June 2021

Report title Accounting Estimates for the West Midlands
Pension Fund
Accountable director Claire Nye, Director of Finance
Originating service Strategic Finance
Accountable employee(s) Emma Bland Finance Business Partner
Tel 01902 553928
Email emma.bland2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been None

considered by

Recommendations for noting:
The Audit and Risk Committee is asked to note:

1. The presentation provided by West Midlands Pension Fund on pension estimates.

1.0 Purpose

Page 11



11

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.0
3.1

4.0
4.1

5.0
5.1
6.0
6.1
7.0
7.1
8.0
8.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

To inform on the key pensions accounting estimates that will be included in the Council’s
financial statements this year.

Background

International Auditing Standards place obligations on auditors to document their
understanding of an entity and its environment, including the entity’s internal control, in
identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements.

ISA (UK) 540 (Revised) Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures (revised
in December 2018) is effective for audits of financial statements for periods beginning on
or after 15 December 2019; and requires auditors to understand a number of matters
related to the Council’s key accounting estimates.

To assist in meeting these requirements, the Council provided an overview of the key
accounting estimates at the 8 March 2021 Committee and invited the Council’s external
valuers (Bruton Knowles and JLL) to discuss in more detail the estimates used to value
the Council’s assets.

On 8 March, the Committee was informed that a representative from West Midlands
Pension Fund would be attending the 21 June Committee, to present on the pension
estimates. Their presentation will be tabled on the day.

Financial implications

There are no specific financial implications arising from this report.
[EB/10062021/G]

Legal implications

There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.
[SZ/10062021/P]

Equalities implications

There are no equality implications arising from this report.

All other Implications

There are no other implications arising from this report.
Schedule of background papers

There are no relevant preceding reports.

Appendices

None

Page 12



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Audit and Risk Comf#fitteg™m No:°
21 June 2020

Report title

Accountable Director
Originating service
Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Assessment of Going Concern Status

Claire Nye, Director of Finance
Strategic Finance

Alison Shannon Chief Accountant

Tel 01902 554561

Email Alison.shannon@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Strategic 13 May 2021

Executive Board

Recommendation for noting:

The Audit and Risk Committee is asked to note:

1. The assessment of Going Concern Status.

Page 13




1.0
11

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6
3.0
3.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Purpose

This purpose of this report is to provide Audit and Risk Committee the Section 151
Officers assessment of the Council’s Going Concern status.

Background

The concept of a ‘going concern’ statement assumes that an authority, its functions and
services will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This assumption
underpins the accounts drawn up under the Local Authority Code of Accounting Practice
and is made because local authorities carry out functions essential to the local
community and are themselves revenue-raising bodies.

Local authorities have to compile a Statement of Accounts in accordance with Code of
Practice Local Authority Accounting for 2020-2021 as published by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). In accordance with the Code, the
Council’'s Statement of Accounts is prepared assuming that the Council will continue to
operate in the foreseeable future and that it is able to do so within the current and
anticipated resources available.

The main factors which underpin the going concern assessment are:

e The Council’s current financial position

e The Council’s projected financial position

e The Council’'s governance arrangements

e The regulatory and control environment applicable to the Council as a local authority

The pandemic has had a significantly distorted the budget and medium term financial
strategy and there will be a ‘covid cost’ beyond the short — medium term. The Going
Concern assessment therefore also considers the impact of the pandemic on the
Council.

It is considered that, having regard to the Council’'s arrangements and such factors as
highlighted in the Going Concern statement, that the Council remains a going concern.

The Council’s assessment on its Going Concern is at Appendix 1.
Financial implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The Final Budget 2021-
2022 and Medium Term Financial Strategy approved by Full Council on 3 March 2021
provided details of the budget position of the council over the medium term.

[AS/11062021/1]

Page 14



4.0
4.1

4.2

5.0
5.1
6.0

7.0
7.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Legal implications

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the authority’s Section 151 Officer
to comment on the robustness of budget estimates and the adequacy of reserves.

Section 114 (1) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 places a duty on the Section
151 Officer to report certain matter to the authority.

[TC/11062021/B]

Equalities implications

There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.
All other Implications

The implications of Covid-19 are detailed in Appendix 1.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Going Concern Statement

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Assessment of Going Concern Statement

Background

As with all principal local authorities, the Council is required to compile its Statement
of Accounts in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
for 2020-2021 (hereafter referred to as the Code) as published by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

In accordance with the Code the Council’s Statement of Accounts is prepared
assuming that the Council will continue to operate in the foreseeable future and that
it is able to do so within the current and anticipated resources available. By this, it is
meant that the Council will realise its assets and settle its obligations in the normal
course of business.

It is considered that, having regard to the Council’s arrangements and such factors
as highlighted in this document, that the Council remains a going concern.

The following statement has been prepared by Strategic Finance and the Director of
Finance to present to Grant Thornton to support our conclusion.

The Council’s current financial position (revenue)

On 4 March 2020, Council approved a net budget of £248.2 million for 2020-2021,
without the use of general fund reserves. This budget included the delivery of
budget reduction and income generation targets totalling £5.5 million.

This budget was set before Covid-19 was declared a global pandemic and the
announcement of the first national lockdown, and at the time of reporting, the full
impact of the pandemic on both the finances and operating environment remained
unclear. The pandemic has significantly distorted the 2020-2021 budget and
medium-term financial strategy.

By swiftly and decisively responding to the pandemic, the Council played a pivotal
role in leading the city through an unprecedented national public health emergency.
This included many vital, short-term policy initiatives to protect the city’s most
vulnerable residents - including support for care home residents and staff, support
for the NHS response, support for city schools and young people and much needed
help for struggling city businesses. In addition to these important short-term
initiatives, some services had to be suspended in line with Government

restrictions. As an understandable result, the Council’s income streams were
adversely affected from the loss of fees and charges. This included revenue normally
gained from leisure centre membership and use, and from car parking

charges. Responding to the pandemic, also meant that, in some instances, budget
reduction targets were not delivered because resources that would have been
focused on transformation programmes, were redirected to the Council’s pandemic
response priorities.

Government has awarded local authorities a number of one-off grants to help tackle
the pandemic, including un-ringfenced general covid grants, compensation for loss of

Page 17



Appendix 1

sales, fees and charges income and specific grants to help contain the outbreak.
The Council has carefully managed the use of these grants, considering evidence
when drawing up a response to the pandemic to ensure that the right response is
delivered at the right level to support residents and businesses. The Council
reported in March 2021, that it was projected that the covid general grant would be
sufficient to deal with the cost pressures in 2020-2021 and that to ensure that the
Council could continue to deliver on our Relight priorities, that any efficiencies
identified against the general covid grant for 2020-2021, will be carried forward to
support the ongoing challenges we face over the medium-term.

In June 2021, it was reported that - despite all the uncertainty and distortion of the
pandemic - the council has once again managed it finances well and is reporting a
net balance to be contributed to General Fund balance of £651,000 for 2020-2021.

This position has been achieved as a result of disciplined financial management after
the council delivered on its plan to tightly control spending as part of its wider
strategy to protect essential services from further cuts in the future as far as
possible. This position means the council has been able to identify £5.1 million from
efficiencies to contributed into a Budget Strategy Reserve to support the 2021-2022
budget as approved by Cabinet in February 2021.

As part of the 2020-2021 budget setting process, a number of emerging pressures
were identified, Therefore, as a prudent measure, a Corporate Contingency budget
for growth was built into 2020-2021. These pressures have continued to be
monitored throughout 2020-2021. Due to the pandemic the operation of the council
has been disrupted and it is forecast that this growth budget will not be required in
full in 2020-2021. In line with our policy set out in the Budget Report approved by
Cabinet in February 2020, the Council will use any efficiencies identified against this
growth budget to reduce the level of capital receipts flexibility draw down for 2020-
2021.

The 2020-2021 revenue budget monitoring process has identified ‘in year’ pressures
across Adult Social Care. These financial pressures in 2020-2021 has been offset
by one-off efficiencies identified from across the wider council. The medium term
financial strategy incorporates growth for future years to address these cost
pressures going forward.

The General Fund balance was increased at the end of 2020-2021 to £13.7 million
(representing approximately 5% of the net budget) and will remain at this level going
into 2021-2022. The Council also reported earmarked reserves totalled £121.4
million at the end of 2020-2021. The Council is required to hold a number of reserves
which either specific criteria associated with funding, legal requirements or
accounting practice; these reserves total £77.5 million. The balance of £43.9 million
are reserves set aside by the council to fund future estimated liabilities and planned
expenditure.

General reserves reflect the ability of the Council to deal with unforeseen events and
unexpected financial pressures in any particular year and are a key indicator of the
financial resilience of the organisation. In the opinion of the Director of Finance
(Section 151 Officer), the proposed level of reserves, provisions and balances is

Page 18



Appendix 1

adequate in respect of the forthcoming financial year (reported to Cabinet on 17
February 2021).

The Council’s current financial position (capital)

The Capital Strategy is underpinned by the Council’s Corporate Plan and the Vision
2030. Like many other councils, the City of Wolverhampton Council has
experienced significant funding reductions and needs to make careful choices in
prioritising where money is spent. However, despite the financial challenges faced,
the Council’s capital programme includes significant investment programmes that
endeavour to create an environment where new and existing business thrive, people
can develop the skills they need to need to secure jobs and to create
neighbourhoods in which people are proud in live.

On 3 March 2021, Council approved the revised medium term capital programme of
£316.4 million for the period of 2020-2021 to 2025-2026 of which £96.4 million is
forecast to be required in 2020-2021.

The pandemic has understandably had an impact on the development of capital
projects. Given the unprecedented circumstances, there has been delays on some
capital schemes. In some instances, cost pressures have also been identified
associated with ‘social distancing’ operating models, materials and how they are
sourced. To ensure that these costs can be met, in June 2020, the Council
approved budget provision for specific risks emerging from the Covid-19 global
pandemic.

The Council’s projected financial position

The Council has developed a Five-Year Financial Strategy which is aligned to Our
Council Plan 2019-2024. The Strategy provides a strategic framework to address
the budget challenge facing the Council over the medium term.

In March 2021, the Council was able to set a balanced budget for 2021-2022 without
the use of general fund reserves or the need to undertake significant service
reductions.

However, due to the short term nature of Government funding streams, the one-off
nature of some of the efficiency measures and the forecast cost implications of the
pandemic, the Council reported that the we are faced with a forecast deficit of £25.4
million in 2022-2023, rising to £29.5 million in 2023-2024. This is in addition to the
budget reduction and income generation targets of £5.6 million already planned and
built into the medium-term financial strategy.

It is vital that the government provides confirmation of long-term, sustainable funding

as soon as possible in order that the council can ensure the continuation of key
service provision and the delivery of Relighting our City Priorities.

Page 19



Appendix 1

Impact of Covid-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation categorised Covid 19 as a global
pandemic. As mentioned above, the pandemic has significantly distorted the budget
and medium term financial strategy and there will be a ‘covid cost’ beyond the short-
medium term. In September 2020, Cabinet approved the City’s covid recovery plan
‘Relighting our City’. This plan outlines the Council’s commitment to continue to
work with partners to support the City to live with and recover from Covid-19.

As part of setting the 2021-2022 budget process and updating the medium-term
financial strategy, the ongoing impact of the pandemic has been considered. Due to
the distortion of the budget it is difficult to confirm the exact costs directly associated
with Covid-19. However, after taking into account the grants specifically for Covid-
19, our current assumptions estimate that the net impact of the pandemic is in the
region of £6.4 million in 2021-2022. In order to balance the budget, these cost
pressures have been met from other efficiencies identified across the Council.

The costs of dealing with the pandemic extend beyond 2021-2022, it is not yet
known how long the pandemic will go on for or what the level of future support
required will be. There is considerable uncertainty on the cost of ‘living with covid’
and the additional demand which will continue to be placed on services such as
social care and public health and well-being. In addition, the economic costs of the
pandemic will place additional pressures on the Council’s income collected from fees
and charges as well as council tax and business rates for years to come.

In Wolverhampton, as elsewhere across the country, the pandemic continues to
affect the lives of our residents and businesses. A key priority of the Council’s
recovery plan is to support our vital local business as well as generate more jobs and
learning opportunities for our residents. The level of support the council is able to
provide will be reliant the availability of resources.

The council will continue to lobby government to be fully reimbursed for all cost
pressures arising from Covid-19. However, if the grant funding is not sufficient then,
the Council will need to review the use of reserves, and possibly identify alternative
ways of reducing costs to mitigate against any cost pressures over the medium term.

As detailed above, to ensure that the Council could continue to deliver on its Relight
recovery priorities, any efficiencies identified against the general covid grant for
2020-2021, will be carried forward to support the ongoing challenges we face over
the medium-term. In addition, the outturn position for 2019-2020 enabled to Council
to create a Recovery Reserve of £3 million which will be used to support the
Councils Relight agenda.

Treasury Management
The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy is reviewed and approved annually by
Council. In addition, mid-year reports are presented to Council, and quarterly

monitoring reports are regularly reviewed by Councillors in both Executive and
Scrutiny functions.

Page 20



Appendix 1

Part of the treasury management operation is to ensure that the Council’s cash flow
is adequately planned, with cash being made available when it is needed. Surplus
monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the
Council approach to risk management, providing adequate liquidity initially before
considering investment return.

The Council recognises the value of in employing external treasury management
service providers to assess specialist skills and resources. Therefore, the Council
uses Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions as its external treasury management
advisors.

Due to the receipt of one-off covid Government grants received throughout 2020-
2021, there has been no adverse impact on the council’s cashflow. However, we will
continue to monitor the impact that the pandemic may have on the council’s cashflow
going forward, including the loss of income across council tax, business rates, and
fees and charges.

The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) regularly reviews the actual activity
against the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and cash flow forecasts.

The Governance Arrangements

The Council has a responsibility to ensure that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded, and property accounted for, and used economically, efficiently, and
effectively. The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions
are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

The Council has a well-established corporate governance framework. This includes
statutory elements like the post of Head of Paid Services, Monitoring Officer and
Section 151 Officer. Risk Management and internal controls are also a significant
part of the governance framework and are designed to manage risk to a reasonable
level.

The Monitoring Officer provides a short report on a monthly basis to the Executive
Team updating Cabinet on the position with each of the bodies that the Council
either owns or has significant involvement in with bodies in respect of which the
Council has potential liabilities. In addition, detailed reports are reported to Executive
Team in advance of any substantive document being taken for approval such as an
Annual Business Plan.

The outcomes of the Council Plan are underpinned by the governance environment
which is consistent with the core principles of the CIPFA / SOLACE framework. The
Council carries out annual reviews of all elements of that make up the governance
framework to ensure it remains effective.

An overview of this governance framework is provided within the Annual Governance
Statement. This includes a review of the effectiveness of the council’s governance

Page 21



Appendix 1

framework including system of internal control. The Annual Governance Statement
will also include a detailed section on each of the bodies within the Council’s group
structure setting out what measures we have in place to provide us with assurance
on good governance and what performance management takes place.

Risk Management

The continuous budget setting and monitoring cycle captures the major risks and
uncertainties facing the council. Major projects are overseen by Project Boards and
projects are monitored and reported through ‘Verto’, which identifies risks,
mitigations and timelines.

The Council’s risk register is updated and reported on a regular basis to the Senior
Executive Board (SEB) and Audit and Risk Committee. At the very start of the
pandemic, a separate Covid-19 Risk Register was established alongside the
Strategic Risk Register. The Risk Registers include both the budgetary pressures
for the current year and the medium term.

Budget reports considered by Cabinet (Resources) Panel and Cabinet also include
details of the main budgetary risk facing the council. The main risks facing the
council, as with other local authorities are the uncertainties around the future funding
streams, impact of demand on statutory services, and the impact of ‘living with
covid'.

SEB regularly review the budget and medium term financial strategy which
incorporates potential known financial risks facing the council.

The External regulatory and control environment

As a local authority the Council has to operate within a highly legislated and
controlled environment. An example of this is the requirement for a balanced budget
each year combined with the legal requirement for councils to have regard to
consideration of such matters as the robustness of budget estimates and the
adequacy of reserves.

In addition to the legal framework and central government control, there are other
factors such as the role undertaken by External Audit as well as the statutory
requirements in some cases for compliance with best practise and guidance
published by CIPFA and other relevant bodies.

Against this backdrop it is considered unlikely that a local authority would be ‘allowed
to fail’ with the likelihood being, when faced with such a scenario, that central
government would intervene - supported by organisations such as the Local
Government Association to bring about the required improvements or help maintain
service delivery.

Conclusion

It is considered that having regard to the Council’'s arrangements and such factors as
highlighted above, that the Council remains a going concern.

Page 22



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Audit and Risk Comf#fittes™ Mo
21 June 2020

Report title

Accountable Director
Originating service
Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Review of Compliance with the CIPFA
Financial Management Code

Claire Nye, Director of Finance
Strategic Finance

Alison Shannon Chief Accountant
Tel 01902 554561
Email Alison.shannon@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendation for noting:

The Audit and Risk Committee is asked to note:

1. The Councils review of compliance with the CIPFA Financial Management Code.

Page 23




1.0
11

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Purpose

This report sets out the outcome the self-assessment of the Council’s compliance with
the CIPFA Financial Management Code and future actions required to be undertaken to
improve and/ or ensure full compliance.

Background

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) has introduced a new
code, the Financial Management Code 2019 (FM Code).

The FM Code is designed to support good practice in financial management and to assist
local authorities in demonstrating their financial sustainability. It sets out for the first time,
the standards of financial management for local authorities. The FM Code helps identify

the risks to financial sustainability and introduces an overarching framework of assurance
which builds on existing financial management good practice.

The FM Code is a principle-based approach, it does not prescribe the financial
management processes that local authorities should adopt, however, it requires that local
authorities demonstrate that its processes satisfy the principles of good financial
management for an authority of its size, responsibilities and circumstances.

Good financial management is proportionate to the risks of the authority’s financial
sustainability posed by the twin pressures of scarce resources and the rising demands on
services. The FM Code identifies these risks to financial sustainably and introduces an
overarching framework of assurance which builds on existing best practice but for the
first time sets explicit standards of financial management.

The underlying principles have been designed to focus on an approach that will assist in
determining whether, in applying the standards of financial management, a local authority
is financially sustainable. The six key principles are:

e Organisational leadership — demonstrating a clear strategic direction based on vision
in which financial management is embedded into organisational culture

e Accountability — based on medium-term financial planning that drives the annual
budget process supported by effective risk management, quality supporting data and
whole life costs

e Financial Management is undertaken with transparency at its core using consistent,
meaningful and understandable data, reported frequently with evidence of periodic
officer action and elected member decision making

e Adherence to professional standards is promoted by the leadership team and is
evidenced

e Sources of assurance are recognised as an effective tool mainstreamed into financial
management, including political scrutiny and the results of external audit, internal
audit and inspection

e The long-term sustainability of local services is at the heart of all financial
management processes and is evidenced by prudent use of public resources

Page 24



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11
3.0
3.1

4.0
4.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Local authorities must demonstrate that the requirements of the code are being satisfied.
Demonstrating this compliance with the FM Code is a collective responsibility of elected
members, the Chief Finance Officer and their professional colleagues in the leadership
team.

Local authorities are required to demonstrate they are working towards the FM Code with
the first full year of compliance in 2021-2022.

The purpose of the FM Code is to establish the principles in a format that matches the
financial management cycle and supports governance in local authorities.

An initial self-assessment of the Authority’s current standing against each of the Financial
Management Standards was carried out and has been reviewed by the Section 151
Officer using a RAG rating approach. In summary the findings of the current self-
assessment against the 17 Financial Management Standards are as follows:

RAG Rating Progress Report Number of Financial
Management Standards

Green Compliance is being 14
demonstrated
Amber Minor to moderate 3

improvements are required to
demonstrate compliance
Red Moderate to significant 0
improvements are required to
demonstrate compliance

The result of the self-assessment indicates an overall rating of Green and reflects that
compliance is being demonstrated.

The full assessment against the Financial Management Standard is at Appendix 1
Financial implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However, the FM Code
provides the Council with an important to tool to support the assessment of financial
sustainability.

[AS/11062021H]
Legal implications

Whilst compliance with the code is not a statutory duty in itself, failure to comply could be
viewed as not meeting exiting statutory duties.

[TC/11062021/A]

Page 25



5.0
5.1
6.0

7.0
7.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Equalities implications
There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report.
All other Implications

There are no other implications

Appendices

Appendix 1: Self-Assessment CIPFA Financial Management Code

Page 26



/¢ abed

Self-Assessment - Financial Management Code

Ref Financial Management Our Response
Standard

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and Leadership Team

Further Actions (if

required)

Appendix 1

RAG Rating

A

The leadership is able to
demonstrate that the
services provided by the
authority provide value for
money (VFM)

On 17 March 2021 Cabinet approved a Council
Performance Framework for 2021-2022.

A performance framework has been developed to
reflect how the Council is performing

against city new and changing priorities, as
articulated in Relighting Our City.

This performance framework will provide high-level
city data on key priorities, benchmark

city performance against national and regional data,
highlight the impact of targeted

interventions, inform strategic decision-making in
relation to provision and

encourage scrutiny of those strategic decisions.

The performance framework will look at two
different types of indicators, city indicators and
impact indicators which will be reported to Cabinet
on a quarterly basis: city indicators are

high level indicators that although the council will
influence, they may not be able to directly

effect. Impact indicators are indicators that
demonstrate what the Council is directly doing

The delivery of the
performance framework
will provide further
assurance that the
authority is delivering
value for money.

In addition,
benchmarking specific
council services will be
enhanced.

A value for money
review of the projects
within the Housing
Revenue Account
(HRA) will also be
considered.

Amber




gz abed

Ref

Financial Management

Standard

Our Response Further Actions (if RAG Rating
required)

to improve outcomes and in turn influence the city
indicators.

In addition to the overarching framework the
following areas provide assurance in specific areas:

The Council’s Project Assurance Group (PAG),
provides assurance that the Council’s projects and
programmes are operating in line with expected
corporate standards. PAG also provides scrutiny of
business cases, ensuring that they are robust and
demonstrate a clear understanding of time, costs,
scope, risk and benefits / disbenefits. VFM is a key
aspect of the business case.

Key projects also have internal boards and working
groups. Where appropriate the boards include
members of the Senior Executive Board (SEB).
These boards evaluate options, before key
decisions are made and monitor progress. Where
appropriate, expert consultants are utilised on major
projects.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)
delivers a robust financial plan through a rigorous
budget setting process.

The External Auditor provides a VFM assessment in
which they determined that the ‘Council has proper




62 abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources’.

The Councils Counter Fraud Team prevent and
detect fraud which contributes towards protecting
public funds and ensuring VFM by stopping /
recovering fraudulent transactions. Counter Fraud
updates are reported to the Audit and Risk
Committee.

Benchmarking is undertaken for specific services
such as Adult Social Care, however this could be
widened to other service areas.

The council work in partnership with neighbouring
local authorities, in areas such as children’s social
care to secure VFM for services across the region.

The Council also participates in data sharing /
benchmarking with SIGOMA, ADASS and other
organisations.

Further Actions (if
required)

RAG Rating

The authority complies with
the CIPFA Statement of the
Role of the Chief Finance
Officer in Local
Government

This is reviewed and completed each year by the
Chief Finance Officer (CFO).

The CFO is a fully qualified CIPFA member and
reports directly to the Chief Executive.

The responsibilities of the role of the CFO are
detailed within the Constitution.

It is proposed that the
statement is shared with
SEB.




0€ abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

The CFO is a member of the Senior Executive
Board and has influence on all material business
decisions, ensuring financial implications are
provided on all reports.

The CFO, through the Strategic Finance Team
provides financial and treasury management reports
throughout the year to Cabinet and Council.

The Strategic Finance team is suitably resources
with appropriately qualified staff.

There are contracts in place for specialist financial
advice (treasury management, specific financial
support).

The annual Statement of Accounts 2019-2020
received an unqualified external audit opinion.

Strategic Finance has received substantial
assurance in the key financial systems internal
audit.

Further Actions (if
required)

Governance and Financial Mana

ement Style

C

The leadership team
demonstrates in its actions
and behaviours
responsibility for

The Council’s Audit and Risk Committee has an
independent member as well as Councillor
representatives. The Committee receives updates,
provides independent assurance over governance,
risk and internal control. The Audit and Risk

RAG Rating




T¢ obed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

governance and internal
control

Our Response

Committee reports to Full Council on an annual
basis.

The internal audit annual opinion provides
reasonable assurance on the Council’s governance,
risk management and control processes. This is
reported to the Audit and Risk Committee.

The Annual Governance Statement draws up on the
management and internal control framework of the
Council, especially the work of internal and external
audit and the Council’s risk management
arrangements.

SEB own and are accountable for the Strategic Risk
Register and Internal Audit Plan.

SEB have oversight and review the Council’s
forward plan — the timetable for taking key decisions
to Cabinet and Council.

The Council is a learning organisation, reviews of
the Monitoring Officer are presented to SEB and the
Executive Team.

The Head of Paid Services is responsible for the

proper recruitment and organisation of staff. The
Council’'s Monitoring Officer has a specific duty to
ensure the Council, its officers and its elected

Further Actions (if
required)

RAG Rating




2 abed

Ref Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

members maintain the highest standards of conduct
in all they do.

The Constitution includes the Financial and
Contract Procedure Rules, scheme of delegation
and the roles and responsibilities of Senior Officers,
elected members and committees. It also sets out
the responsibilities of Heads of Services, Budget
Managers and employees. It includes the scheme of
delegation for decisions. These responsibilities are
reinforced in the Management Accountability letter
which all managers are required to sign on
appointment.

Further Actions (if
required)

D The authority applies the
CIPFA / SOLACE
Delivering Good
Governance in Local
Government: Framework
(2016)

The Governance and Ethics Committee is a cross-
party group which considers and advises the
appropriate Council bodies on matters relating to
governance and the Constitution.

The Audit and Risk Committee provide independent
assurance on the adequacy of the governance and
risk management framework and the associated
control environment. This Committee receive the
draft Annual Governance Statement for review and
consideration prior to approving the final statement
and action plan, which is subsequently monitored
and reported on.

The Council has a local Code of Corporate
Governance. However, this does need updating in

The Local Code of
Corporate Governance
will be reviewed and
updated during the
2021-2022 year in order
to reflect the latest
CIPFA/SOLACE
framework.

RAG Rating




cc abed

Ref Financial Management Our Response Further Actions (if
Standard required)
order to reflect the latest CIPFA / SOLACE
Delivering Good Governance in local Government
Framework.
This is reported in the Annual Governance
Statement.
E The financial management | The Constitution details Cabinet/ Committee

style of the authority
supports financial
sustainability

functions elected members and officer delegations.

The Constitution includes the Financial and
Contract Procedure Rules and sets out the
responsibilities of Senior Officers, Heads of
Services, Budget Managers and employees. These
responsibilities are reinforced in the Management
Accountability letter which all managers are
required to sign on appointment. Budget managers
are responsible for budget monitoring, and Strategic
Finance - review, challenge, advice and have
oversight of the whole process.

All reports include financial and other key
implications. Financial implications are signed off
by Strategic Finance.

Decision are reported through leadership teams,
and SEB for approval, before, they are considered
by Cabinet.

RAG Rating




7€ obed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

The Council has ‘one council’ approach and
budgets aligned to the Council’s priorities. The
Medium Term Financial Strategy is driven by the
Section 151 Officer, but also owned by SEB.

SEB have regular focussed sessions on the budget
and MTFS to inform strategic decision making.

Directors lead on providing updates to SEB and
ensuring their Cabinet members are briefed on
financial monitoring / implications within their
service area.

Strategic Finance are represented on major project
groups and attend Directorate Leadership Teams to
provide strategic advice and challenge to enable
successful delivery.

The Council supports an enabling management
style, allowing transformation to be undertaken
within services, improving service delivery, driving
out efficiencies, and delivering better value for
money. The Council ensures that finances and
other resources are put in place to ensure that
these transformation programmes can be delivered
effectively.

Further Actions (if
required)

RAG Rating




G¢e abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

Long to Medium Term Financial Management

Further Actions (if
required)

RAG Rating

F

The authority has carried
out a credible and
transparent financial
resilience assessment

The Council’s Five Year Financial Strategy
Framework clearly sets out the Council priorities
and is aligned to Our Council Plan 2019-2023.

The Strategy provides the strategic framework to
address the budget challenge facing the council
over the medium term.

The Council reports updates on the Budget and
three year MTFS throughout the year, reports
clearly set out the projected budget deficit, the
assumptions, uncertainties and risks.

In response to the pandemic, the Council has
approved its five-point recovery plan, ‘Relighting
Our City’. On 17 March 2021 Cabinet approved the
refreshed Relighting Our City Recovery Framework
which demonstrated how the budget has been
linked to the key priorities.

The Council’s Capital Strategy sets out the long-
term context in which capital expenditure and
investment decisions are made.

The capital programme covers a 5 year period and
provides a level of contingency to ensure provision
is made to sustain key council assets such as fleet,
ICT and properties.

Whilst the Council has a
Five Year Financial
Strategy framework,
and three year MTFS,
due to the uncertainty
over future funding
streams focus has been
given to addressing the
next year’s budget
deficit in order to set a
balance budget and
recalculating the
potential impact on
future years.

During 2021-2022 more
focus will be given to
looking over the
medium term with the
aim of developing
proposals that address
the deficit over multiple
years.

Amber




9¢ abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

In addition, the Council Housing Revenue Account
Is based on a 30 year time horizon and is presented
to Cabinet and Full Council on an annual basis.

The Council has set a balanced budget for the last
consecutive seven years without the need to use
general reserves. The Council does, however, have
planned use of specific reserves built into the
budget.

A full risk assessment is undertaken as part of the
MTFS. The Council’s Strategic Risk register
incorporate the MTFS as a risk due to the level of
uncertainties facing the Council over the medium
term. Mitigations are identified for risks where
appropriate; risks are monitored, reviewed and
reported against on a regular basis.

In relation to demand led services, in particular
social care, Strategic Finance supports the services
to undertake scenario modelling on potential future
demand to determine demographic growth
requirements, inflation implications and impact on
suppliers.

The main challenge facing the Council is the level of
uncertainty on the level of resources that will be
made available to the council over the medium
term. Strategic Finance considers different
scenarios to inform the financial strategy.

Further Actions (if RAG Rating
required)




)€ abed

Ref Financial Management Our Response Further Actions (if RAG Rating

Standard required)

A number of reserves are held to mitigate against
future financial risks such as Budget Contingency
reserve, Business Rates equalisation reserve,
Treasury Management equalisation reserve.
Reserves are also held to support transformation of
services, development of projects and delivery of
Relight priorities.

The Council has successfully maintained the level
of reserves.

On an annual basis, a specific Reserves Working
Group undertake a review of the appropriateness of
reserves held by the Council and make
recommendations to Cabinet on any future reserves
no longer required for their original purpose.

G The authority understands | The MTFS remains a Strategic Risk. The MTFS is
its prospects for financial reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis
sustainability in the longer | including a continual review of the assumptions and
term and has reported this | projections of the strategy, risks, and the

clearly to members effectiveness of key transformation projects.

The Council reports updates on Budget and MTFS
throughout the year, reports clearly set out the
projected budget deficit, the assumptions,
uncertainties, risks and the plan in place to address
the budget gap. The Five-year Financial Strategy
provides a strategic framework to address the




g¢ abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

budget challenge facing the Council over the
medium term.

In relation to demand led services, in particular
social care, Strategic Finance supports the services
to undertake scenario modelling on potential future
demand to determine demographic growth
requirements, inflation implications and impact of
supplier services.

The main challenge facing the Council is the level of
uncertainty on the level of resources that will be
made available to the council over the medium
term. Strategic Finance considers different
scenarios to inform the financial strategy

There is considerable uncertainty over the medium
on the impact of the pandemic and the cost of ‘living
with covid,’ including the additional demand which
will continue to be placed on services such as social
care, public health and wellbeing. The economic
costs of the pandemic will also place additional
pressures on the Council’s income collected from
fees and charges as well as council tax and
business rates for year to come.

The Council approved its Recovery Plan, ‘Relighting
Our City’ in September 2020. This plan outlines the
Council’'s commitment to continue to work with
partners to support the City to live with and recover

Further Actions (if
required)

RAG Rating




6E abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

from Covid-19. In order to support this work, the
Council has established a Recovery Reserve.

In addition, the delay of the review of Local
Government finances has placed uncertainties on
the Council’'s MTFS.

The Council’s Capital Programme includes a
Corporate Contingency for Growth to fund the
Council’s replacement programme and support new
schemes requiring capital investments. Requests
for funding are subject to business cases reviewed
in line with corporate priorities.

Further Actions (if
required)

The authority complies with
the CIPFA Prudent Code
for Capital Finances in
Local Authorities

The is aware of its obligations under the Prudential
Code and has assessed itself as compliant with this
principle.

The Council’s Full Council has approved the Capital
Strategy which is a key document and forms part of
the Council’s integrated capital, revenue, strategic
management and balance sheet planning. The
strategy provides a high-level overview of how
capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management activity are undertaken in line with
service objectives, whilst taking account of
stewardship, value for money, prudence,
sustainability and affordability.

RAG Rating




o abed

Ref Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

The Council also has a Housing Revenue Account
is based on a 30 year time horizon and is presented
to Cabinet and Full Council on an annual basis.

Treasury management activity is monitored and
reported on a quarterly basis to Cabinet, with mid-
year and annual reports being considered by Full
Council. The Treasury Management Strategy is
approved by Full Council each year.

The Treasury Management Strategy and
performance reports are presented to Our Council
Scrutiny Panel for scrutiny and review throughout
the year.

Specific training on Treasury Management is
provided for councillors.

Further Actions (if
required)

I The authority has a rolling
multi-year medium term
financial plan consistent
with sustainable service
plans

The MTFS is a ‘live’ document detailing budget
pressures, opportunities, level of resources and the
forecast deficit.

The continuous budget setting and monitoring cycle
captures the major risks, uncertainties and
opportunities facing the Council.

Medium term financial modelling is undertaken on
areas of uncertainty such as social care, and where
appropriate growth is built into the MTFS to deal
with future forecast demands. Earmarked reserves

RAG Rating




T obed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

are held to support service transformation with the
aim of driving out efficiencies in future years.

The Council reports updates on Budget and MTFS
throughout the year, reports clearly set out the
projected budget deficit, the assumptions,
uncertainties, risks and the plan in place to address
the budget gap. The Five-year Financial Strategy
provides a strategic framework to address the
budget challenge facing the Council over the
medium term.

In order to be prudent, the MTFS incorporates
Corporate Contingency budgets to deal with
emerging pressures identified during the budget
setting process. These pressures are monitored
throughout the year and request for funding are
subject the submission of business cases, any
efficiencies identified against these budgets are
released to support future budget deficits.

Regular updates are presented to Leadership
Teams, SEB and Cabinet on the Council financial
position over the medium term.

The Council also hold a General Fund reserve of
£13.7 million, which represents approximately 5% of
the net budget requirements to deal with any
unforeseen events.

Further Actions (if
required)

RAG Rating




2t obed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

The Annual Budget

Our Response

Further Actions (if
required)

J

The authority complies with
its statutory obligations in
respect of the budget
setting process

As required by legislation, the Council set a
balanced budget on an annual basis, which is
presented and approved by Full Council. The
annual budget reports are submitted to Full Council
for approval prior to the start of the new financial
year.

The Council has set a balanced budget without the
need to utilise general fund reserves for the last
consecutive seven years.

Updates on the MTFS and Budget are presented
throughout the year to Cabinet for approval.

The Council is aware of the circumstances and
process in issuing a Section 114 notice but does not
envisage this to be an issue over the medium term.

The budget report includes
a statement by the chief
finance officer on the
robustness of the estimates
and a statement on the
adequacy of the proposed
financial reserves.

The forecast and actual level of reserves are
monitored and reported to Cabinet.

A number of reserves are held to mitigate against
future financial risks such as Budget Contingency
reserve, Business Rates equalisation reserve,
Treasury Management equalisation reserve.
Reserves are also held to support transformation of
services, development of projects and delivery of
Relight priorities.

RAG Rating




oy abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

On an annual basis, a specific Reserves Working
Group undertake a review of the appropriateness of
reserves held by the Council and make
recommendations to Cabinet on any future reserves
no longer required for their original purpose.

Whilst the Council does not hold high levels of
reserves, through good financial management and
prudent planning, it has been able to protect the
level of reserves.

The Final Budget Report approved by Full Council
includes a statement from the Director of Finance
(Section 151 Officer) on the robustness of the
estimates and levels of reserves.

Further Actions (if
required)

Stakeholder Engagement and Bu

siness Plans

L

The authority has engaged
where appropriate with key
stakeholders in developing
its long-term financial
strategy, medium term
financial plan and annual
budget

The budget consultation process forms part of a
continuous process of engagement with residents,
businesses and other key stakeholder throughout
the year which focuses on understanding people’s
priorities.

The council has also invited residents and
businesses to submit questions via social media to
which the Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Resources have provided responses.

The Council aligns its resources to Our Council Plan
2019-2024 which set out how we will deliver our

A new digital tool will be
re-launched in 2021-
2022 giving
respondents a chance
to set their own Council
budget in line with their
preferences.

Work will continue to
embed the budget
consultation process
into the continuous
engagement we have

RAG Rating




vt abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

contributions to Vision 2030 and how we work with
partners and communities to be a city of
opportunity.

Alongside managing the emergency response to the
Covid-19 pandemic, the Council has also
undertaken extensive planning for recovery. The
Council engaged with around 2,500 people
including residents, young people, the voluntary and
community sector and other partners, employees,
Councillors and businesses across to city which
helped shape the Council’s five-point recovery plan
— ‘Relighting Our City’. The Budget Report in March
reported that the MTFS will be aligned to the our
Relight priorities, with growth being built in to
support our Relighting Our City agenda, in addition
to the £3 million Recovery reserve held to support
our recovery.

On 17 March 2021 Cabinet approved the refreshed
Relighting Our City Recovery Framework which
demonstrated how the budget has been linked to
the key priorities.

Further Actions (if
required)

with our residents,
businesses, and key
stakeholders.

The authority uses an
appropriate documented
option appraisal
methodology to
demonstrate the value for
money of its decisions

The council uses project management methodology
as standard practice, which includes feasibility /
options analysis gateway for all registered projects.
A later business case gateway check provides
further detail on cost / benefit impacts of option
selected for further development. The Project

The Council is
continuing to develop
the project methodology
[ approach as part of
ongoing enhancements.
The Council’s default

RAG Rating

Amber




Gy abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

Management Group (PAG) provides scrutiny,
support and gateway control to projects.

Details are captured in a standardised options
appraisal template which is held on central system
(Verto).

The project methodology at present is a waterfall
based approach — with the advancing gateways
representing greater levels of understanding about
the project.

Further Actions (if
required)

project methodology at
present is the waterfall
based approach.
However, particularly as
a consequence of the
uncertainties caused by
the pandemic, the need
for alternative project
management
approaches has been
brought into sharper
focus. Shorter, more
critical / urgent projects
may be more suited to
an agile management
approach — this is
subject to further work.

The Council is also
looking to develop a
new a contract
management framework
with supporting
documents.

RAG Rating

Monitoring Financial Performanc

e

N

The leadership team takes
action using reports
enabling it to identify and
correct emerging risks to its

The continuous budget setting and monitoring cycle
captures the major risk and uncertainties facing the
council.




o abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

budget strategy and
financial sustainability

Our Response

Quarterly budget monitoring reports detailing the
forecast annual outturn position and reasons for
variances are presented to the Directorate
Leadership Teams and SEB for their consideration
and approval.

Strategic Finance attend leadership teams and
major project groups, identifying at an early stage
any emerging risks; providing challenge and
strategic support.

The Strategic Risk Register is reviewed on a regular
basis by SEB and Directorate leads which also
informs risks at an early stage.

As required, growth is built into the MTFS to
address risks identified during the monitoring, which
are reviewed and agreed by SEB.

Corporate contingencies budgets are also held for
emerging risks that are identified, but where there is
still a level of uncertainty at the time of budget
setting.

Approved budget reduction targets are also
reviewed as part of the budget setting process to
ensure they are still deliverable, undeliverable
targets are removed or re-profiled as appropriate.

Further Actions (if
required)

RAG Rating




/v obed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

The Budget reports presented to Cabinet (both
MTFES and quarterly monitoring), clearly set out the
financial risks.

Further Actions (if
required)

The leadership team
monitors the elements of its
balance sheet which pose
a significant risk to its
financial sustainability

The level and areas of credit losses are reviewed on
a regular basis and feed into the quarterly
monitoring which is reported to elected members.

Budget managers also have access to reports on
any income still owed for their service areas.

Cashflow is monitored on a daily basis and updates
shared with the Finance Business Partners and
Chief Accountant.

The Council holds and maintains a comprehensive
list of assets. The year-end process includes
detailed valuation of assets by external valuers.
These are then reviewed and challenged by
Strategic Finance. Reasons for movement are
explored and explained.

The CFO and Deputy Section 151 Officer review
and sign off the assumptions used to calculate
major estimates.

Provisions are reviewed and agreed with the
Director of Finance.

As part of the quarterly
monitoring, service
areas which generate
significant income will
be asked to review and
comment on
outstanding income.

RAG Rating




gy abed

Ref

Financial Management
Standard

Our Response

The Council has effectively managed its Reserves
and reports them to Cabinet. In addition, on an
annual basis, a specific Reserves Working Group
undertake a review of the appropriateness of
reserves held by the Council and make
recommendations to Cabinet on any future reserves
no longer required for their original purpose.

Details around reserves, provisions and balances
are shared with SEB.

The CFO reviews the Statement of Accountants and
confirms that they are a true and fair view of the
financial position of the authority as at 31 March in
year of account.

Further Actions (if
required)

External Financial Reporting

[=)

The Chief Finance Officer
has personal and statutory
responsibility for ensuring
that the statement of
accounts produced by the
local authority complies
with the reporting
requirements of the Code

SEB and the CFO are aware of the CFO’s
responsibilities in terms of the preparation of the
annual statement of accounts and is compliant with
this principle.

Any required changes are reviewed and
implemented in advance. Staff attend training /
seminars to ensure we are aware of any pending
updates/ changes.

In addition, information / understanding /
approaches are also shared amongst regional
colleagues.

RAG Rating




61 abed

Ref Financial Management Our Response Further Actions (if
Standard required)
The Council met the statutory deadline for the
production of the Statement of Accounts.
Q The presentation of the The draft outturn figures are presented to

final outturn figures and
variations from budget
allow the leadership team
to make strategic financial
decisions

Directorate Leadership Teams and to SEB for
review and to agree the final position (including the
use of reserves and grants). Directors lead on
providing explanations on any variances against
budget within their service areas, and are expected
to explain what action is being taken to address any
adverse variances, both in year and for future years.
The Outturn position is presented to Cabinet for
approval.

The Outturn report includes explanation on
variations to budget, updates on use of reserves
and any newly identified budget risks that may need
to be incorporated into the MTFS.

RAG Rating




This page is intentionally left blank



CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON Annual Governance Statement 2020-2021

COUNCIL

Scope of Responsibility

The City of Wolverhampton Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and
that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under
the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs,
facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The Council has a Local Code of Corporate Governance, which will be revised in 2021-2022 in line with the latest principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE
Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. The latest principles have been adopted in this statement.

TI’;g Council is also responsible for the strategic management and administration of the West Midlands Pension Fund with the Council’s Chief
EXacutive, Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer holding specific responsibilities for supporting both the members of the Pensions Committee
and.the Local Pension Board in their role.

THe Council has a number of bodies that it either owns or has a potential liability for. This statement also covers the approach taken in relation to
these and specifically covers how the Council ensures that there is good governance in respect of these other bodies — the most relevant bodies
are:

e Wolverhampton Homes is the Council’s Arm’s Length (Housing) Management Organisation (ALMO) and is a company wholly owned by the
Council. The control of the ALMO is through the Board which has representatives drawn from 1/3 council, 1/3 tenants and 1/3 independent.
There is a Management Agreement between the Council and Wolverhampton Homes which sets out the contractual and govern%ﬁce
arrangements between the parties. @

o

e Wolverhampton Housing Company Limited — this is a wholly owned trading company set up under the powers in the Local Govefiment Act
2003 and is known as WYV Living focused on developing properties within the City to meet the Council’s aspirations in terms of awgilable
housing. There is a shareholder agreement in place between the Council and WV Living with WV Living’s Business Plan having 3 be

approved by the Council and compliance with that business plan being monitored by the Council. CZ)

(00)
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED


http://www.sandwell.gov.uk/downloads/download/484/code_of_corporate_governance

e Yoo Recruit Limited — this is a wholly owned trading company set up under the powers in the Local Government Act 2003 and provides
staffing to the Council and other bodies. There is a shareholder agreement in place between the Council and Yoo Recruit and the Business
Plan has to be approved by the Council and compliance with that business plan being monitored by the Council.

e Help 2 Own — this is a limited liability partnership that was jointly established with the West Midlands Combined Authority in 2021 to pilot an
an affordable housing product that helps to address the issue that many potential buyers who are in work have in raising the deposit to
secure a mortgage. This is the subject of a number of legal agreements which sets up the contractual and governance arrangements
between the relevant parties.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the Council is directed and controlled and its
activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the council to monitor the achievements of its strategic
obﬁctives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

Ri8k management and internal control are a significant part of the governance framework and are designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.
Tl'%y cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
asgyrance of effectiveness. The systems of risk management and internal control are based on an on-going process designed to identify and
prisritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and statement of accounts.

In April 2019 The City of Wolverhampton Council approved a new Council Plan for 2019-2024. The plan builds on the Council’s transformation
journey with a focus on delivering the following improved outcomes for the City:

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



Council Plan

Working together to be a city
of opportunity and to deliver
our contribution to Vision 2030

CITY o Wolverhampton for Everyone
2 people powered city
WOLVERHAMPTON " " "

COUNCIL communities to uniock patential and
create change’

€g abed

A full copy of the Council Plan can be found here

and healthy more fulfilling lives,
communities by benefiting from:

\nsp'\re trust and Conﬁde
e
Q

Children and

A vibrant, green young people get
city we can the best possible

all be proud of start in life

OUTCOMES: Well skilled  Jad

Wulfrunians will live
longer, healthier and

Better homes More good jobs
for all and investment

in our city

Peoplfa worl_(mg 2
in an inclusive CED
economy

Following the Covid-19 Pandemic, the Council Plan has been underpinned by a five point ‘relight’ recovery plan

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED


https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019-04/Our%20Council%20Plan%202019-2024.pdf

RELIGHTING

OURCITY

Support Create more Generate more Grow our Stimulate vibrant
people who opportunities jobs and learning vital local high streets and
need us most for young people opportunities businesses communities
o o o ®

COUNCIL PLAN

Wulfrunians live longer, healthier and more fulfilling lives

VISION 2030

OUR
PRINCIPLES

8 We will underpin our This recovery commitment is aligned to our climate The city i at the forefront of digital infrastructure and We will continue to tackle the inequalities in our
work with the change strategy ‘Future Generztions’ and our target to innovation, Welverhampton will be one of the first cities communities which impact on the cpportunities of local
CD following key make the City of Wolverhampton Council carbon — in the world to hest a 5G accelerator hub making us truly people. The Councils "Excellent’ rated squalitiss
principles; neutral by 2028. We are committed to delivering on the & world leader in emerging technology w maors than framework is at the heart of our recovery commitment.
(J'I recommandations of our Climats Citizan Aszembly and sver digital skillz and connectivity are vital to ensure cur Mo community will be lsft behind as we transform our
_b to upholding the promizes we made when the Council rasidents can access services, interact with friends and city togathar.

declared a climats emergency in July 2019. family, and enter the job markst.

These outcomes and principles are underpinned by the governance environment. This environment is consistent with the core principles of the new
CIPFA/ SOLACE framework. In reviewing the Council’s priorities and the implications for its governance arrangements, the Council carries out an
annual review of the elements that make up the governance framework to ensure it remains effective.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council’s governance framework, and where assurance against these is

required, are described below.
Core principles of the CIPFA/ Assurances required Governance framework providing Review of Effectiveness Issues identified
SOLACE framework assurance

¢ Behaving with integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values, and respecting the
rule of law.

¢ Ensuring openness and
comprehensive stakeholder
engagement.

¢ Defining outcomes in terms
of sustainable economic,
U social, and environmental
Q penefits.
«Q

@® Determining the

©n interventions necessary to

O1 optimise the achievement of
the intended outcomes.

o Developing the entity’'s
capacity, including the
capability of its leadership
and the individuals within it.

e Managing risks and
performance through robust
internal control and strong
public financial
management.

¢ Implementing good practices
in transparency, reporting,
and audit to deliver effective
accountability.

Delivery and
communication of an
agreed corporate plan

Quality services are
delivered efficiently and
effectively

Clearly defined roles and
functions

Management of risk

Effectiveness of internal
controls

Compliance with laws,
regulation, internal policies
and procedures

Value for money and
efficient management of
resources

High standards of conduct
and behaviour

Public accountability

Published information is
accurate and reliable

Implementation of
previous governance
issues

The Constitution (including Head of
Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer
and Monitoring Officer)

Council, Cabinet and Committees
Audit and Risk Committee
Scrutiny function

Standards Committee

Internal and External Audit
Strategic Executive Board
Directors Assurance Statements
Corporate and Business plans
Medium Term Financial Strategy

Strategic and Covid-19 Risk
Register

Codes of Conduct

Whistleblowing and other anti-fraud
related policies

Financial and Contract Procedure
Rules

modern.gov (the council’s
committee management information
system)

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

External Audit Report to
Those Charged with
Governance (ISA 260)
Report — unqualified
opinion

Annual Internal Audit
Report - unqualified
opinion

Annual Audit and Risk
Committee Report to
Council

Annual Statement of
Accounts

Local Government
Ombudsman Report

Scrutiny reviews

Annual Governance
Statement — including the
follow up of previous
year issues

Savings Targets
Procurement
Contract Monitoring
Strategic Asset Plan
Civic Halls
Constitution Review



The Financial Management Code

During the year and in line with best practice, the Council undertook a self-assessment exercise against the new Financial Management Code in
advance of its introduction in 2021-2022. The Code includes the following core principles by which authorities should be guided in managing their
finances:

Organisational leadership — demonstrating a clear strategic direction based on a vision in which financial management is embedded into
organisational culture.

Accountability — financial management is based on medium-term financial planning, which drives the annual budget process supported by
effective risk management, quality supporting data and whole life costs.

Financial management is undertaken with transparency at its core using consistent, meaningful and understandable data, reported with
appropriate frequency and with evidence of periodic officer action and elected member decision making.

Adherence to professional standards is promoted by the leadership team and is evidenced.

Sources of assurance are recognised as an effective tool mainstreamed into financial management and include political scrutiny and the
results of external audit, internal audit and inspection.

The long term sustainability of local services is at the heart of all financial management processes and is evidenced by prudent use of
public resources.

95 8fed

The self-assessment found the Council to be in compliance with the Code. However, there were a limited number of matters where areas for
improvement were identified. As a result of this, an action plan has been prepared and its implementation will be monitored throughout the year.
The results of the exercise will be reported to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Covid-19 Considerations

In 2020-2021 the Council, as with all other local authorities, continued to adapt the ways in which it worked to address Covid-19 not only in terms of
ensuring that the City’s vulnerable residents have been supported alongside its businesses but also in its governance arrangements.

The Council’s approach to governance during Covid-19 has been very clearly set out and shared with Councillors, the key aspects included:

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



Streamlined decision making — following the introduction of full lockdown in March 2020 the Council instigated a decision making approach
that ensured that the focus has been on protecting the vulnerable and supporting businesses. Up until the coming into force in May 2020 of
the provisions in the Coronavorus Act 2020 allowing for remote decision making by Local Government, all decisions that would have been
made by Committees or Council were made using emergency powers provisions in the constitution. Since the provisions on remote
meetings were enacted the full range of Council meetings have taken place using those powers and these have been filmed and made
available on the Council’s website.

At times the emergency powers have still needed to be used for urgent amendments to the budget and other matters that needed urgent
resolution and that would otherwise have gone to Council but circumstances have not allowed this to happen, a good example of this is the
award of additional grants to businesses following urgent Government announcements.

All decisions going through the emergency powers process, prior to May 2021, have to be made by the Leader, 2 Cabinet Members and the
Chair and Vice-Chair of Scrutiny Board and have been shared with Councillors through a daily update sent to all Councillors and published
through the Council’s website. This approach has ensured that decisions have been made rapidly with Councillor involvement from both
political groups and have been shared across all Councillors.

All decisions made have been tracked and recorded on detailed spreadsheets with records of whether they need to be made through the
urgent decision process or through delegated powers — this has included the following:

1S 9abpd

o Clear records being kept of the financial pressures as a result of Covid-19 including loss of income, additional spend
o Clear evidence based approach to explain why decisions have been made, using performance data
o Communciation implications of any approach taken and the need to ensure that the message is received by all communities

e A Covid-19 risk register has been produced interfacing with the Council’s strategic risk register to ensure that the Council has been aware of
and taken account of the key Covid-19 risks in an ever changing situation. This register has regularly been taken to the Audit and Risk
Committee.

At all times the approach of the Council has been informed and shaped by advice from the Director of Public Health and key partners to ensure that
the Council as had the most effective response possible to the pandemic. As part of the governance process key areas of concern have been able
to be fed up through the mechanisms set out in the Governance Structure to a regional and national level.

The Review of Effectiveness

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



The Council has a responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of
intermal control. This review is informed by the work of councillors and senior officers within the Council who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the governance framework including Internal Audit’'s annual report, the Scrutiny function and also by reports
made by the Council’s external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. The above table helps illustrate this framework, where
assurance is provided and the processes through which the effectiveness of these arrangements are reviewed.

Opinion for 2020-2021

The review of effectiveness has found the arrangements for the governance framework to be fit for purpose.

A key component of the review of effectiveness is through the work of the Council’s Audit and Risk Committee and during the year the Committee
continued helping to ensure that the Council had a modern, effective and risk focussed Committee. During the year they:

e Maintained the focus of the Committee on the Council’s risk management arrangements, gaining an increased assurance that the Council
was managing its risks well.

Maintained a strong working relationship, through regular progress meetings, with the Council’s External Auditors Grant Thornton, the
Internal Auditors and Senior Officers. There was also had further engagement with Grant Thornton, through regular consideration of their
informative Audit Committee Update publications at Committee meetings.

abed .,

Ul
In%rnal Audit

Internal Audit has reviewed itself against the governance arrangements set out in the CIPFA Statement on the Role of Head of Internal Audit and
the Council is able to confirm that the arrangements conform to these requirements. The Council is also able to confirm compliance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Internal Audit has concluded that based on the work undertaken during the year on areas of key risk, the implementation by management of the
recommendations made and the assurance made available to the Council by other providers as well as directly by Internal Audit, it can provide
reasonable assurance that the Council has adequate and effective governance, risk management and internal control processes”.

Internal Audit — Covid-19

A report was presented to the Audit and Committee in June 2020 noting that the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards Advisory Board had
produced guidance to support audit functions during Covid-19. This stated that all internal audit teams in organisations affected by Covid-19 would
need to reassess their work plans and staff priorities. During the year a proportion of the audit resources was temporarily redeployed within the
Council to provide assistance in a number of areas including the food distribution hub, the various business support grants teams, assisting
Procurement with supplier due diligence checks regarding the supply of personal protective equipment (PPE) and other Covid-19 related grant

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



assurance. At both the September and December 2020 meetings, the Audit and Risk Committee were informed that in order to reflect the in-year
change in risk profile for the Council and to facilitate the above shift in resources, a consultation exercise had been undertaken with the senior
management team and the internal audit plan revisited to ensure that the remaining audit resource was focussed in the most effective manner.

As a result of this, it was agreed with the senior management team that a number of audit reviews that initially featured in the current plan, would
be put back until the following year, where they again formed part of the assessment of assurance needs exercise. Details of these reviews were
provided to the Committee at the December meeting. Audit Services continue to assess the situation, and it was believed that the number of audits
planned to be completed, including all of the key financial systems reviews, would still enable Audit to be in a position to provide an annual audit
opinion at the year-end.

Managing the risk of Fraud and Corruption

With regards to the CIPFA Code of practice on managing the risk of fraud and corruption - having considered all the principles, the Council is
satisfied that it has adopted a response that is appropriate for its fraud and corruption risks and commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud.
The activities undertaken in this area were primarily led during the year by the Audit and Risk Committee.

CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government

o
T% role of the Council’'s Section 151 Officer has been assessed against the CIPFA Statement and found to be compliant.

()]
W8§t Midlands Pension Fund

THE West Midlands Pension Fund has completed its own “Assurance Framework — Supporting the Annual Governance Statement” which identified
that there had been no adverse matters arising from the work behind their assurance framework.

Wolverhampton Homes

The Council’s internal auditors also provide the internal audit service for Wolverhampton Homes. They were able to provide reasonable assurance
that the Company had adequate and effective governance, risk management and internal control processes, and this was reported through their
Audit and Business Assurance Committee.

We recently commissioned an external review of our governance and performance against the new Regulator for Social Housing (RSH) Consumer
Standards. The review has confirmed that CWC / WH has an adequate policy framework in place to meet the required standards, whilst
highlighting a few areas where we can bolster mechanisms for recording and monitoring performance. We were pleased with the outcome of the
review and will ensure a suitable action plan is in place to maintain the required standards.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



WV Living
WYV Living’'s accounts are audited separately by external auditors and an unqualified opinion was provided on the accounts for 2019-2020.

During 2020-21 the way in which the Council and WV Living interact has been carefully considered by the Council and as a result a number of
changes have been/are being made, these include:

e Appointment of non executive director to the board of WV Living with considerable Housing experience

e Production and approval of a new business plan for WV Living and regular reviews and reports on the compliance with that business plan
taken both to the Council’s political and officer leadership and also to the Council’s Shareholder Board for WV Living

e Strengthening of the Council’s Shareholder board — increasing the number of members from 6 to 10 — and ensuring that clear objective
advice is provided to the Shareholder Board by Council officers including the S.151 officer and the Monitoring Officer

Yoo Recruit
Yogr Recruit’'s accounts are audited separately by external auditors and an unqualified opinion was provided on the accounts for 2019-2020. Work
isgrrently underway to ensure that the business plan is fit for purpose and this will be reported on shortly.

@

H&D 2 own

Help 2 Own has only recently been established. The Council and the WMCA instructed and obtained detailed external advice in order to ensure
that the arrangements are fit for purpose and will protect the interests of each body and deliver the proposed outcomes. The partnership will be and
will be subject to external audit. This will provide assurance that the parternship has adequate and effective governance, risk management and
internal control processes. A detailed report on the way governance works for Help 2 Own will be brought to Cabinet shortly and will be reported to
Audit and Risk Committee.

Key changes to the governance framework during the year

During 2020-21 a full review was carried out of the Council’s constitution and decision making in the Council. As a result a number of changes were
recommended to be made to the constitution at the Annual general meeting in May 2021 these included:

e Simplifying the constitution to make it easier to follow for the public, Councillors and officers
e Clarifying and simplifying the delegations to Committees

e Combining Standards and Governance Committee to produce a Governance and Ethics Committee with a clear focus on good governance
and a detailed work programme

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



Updating the emergency action power in the light of experiences during Covid-19

Udpating the rules of debate for Council meetings

Adopting the Local Government Association’s Model Code of Conduct

Updating the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules in the light of the end of the EU exit transition period

This work continues with further changes to be brought to Council in 2021 including changes to the officer delegaitons. In addition work continues
to review the approach to policy formulation and scrutiny and proposals. A proposal was agreed by the Council’'s Governance Committee in
February 2021 to introduce a new approach to policy formulation and scrutiny in 2022 as a result of the impact of the pandemic with a pilot being
carried out later in 2021.

As part of the Constitution review work a review has also taken place on support for Councillors leading to a new Councillor induction and
development programme for new and existing Councillors supporting them on key aspects such as declaration of interests.

Regular briefings continue to take place of all cabinet members, opposition leader/deputy leader and chairs of panels ensuring that there is
proactive information provided and discussion on key issues, risks and matters. As part of this monthly briefings are given on the risks and issues
ingglation to the Council owned bodies and the steps taken to address any risks. As part of this work a review has also taken place of the lessons
le&2ned in other authorities in governance terms following a number of Public Interest/Best Value Reports. This has led to additional assurance
waolk being carried out that has provided re-assurance that governance arrangements are fit for purpose in the Council.

=

Progress on the Governance Issues from 2019-2020

The table below describes the governance issues identified during 2019-2020 and the progress made against these during 2020-2021.

2019-2020 - Key areas for Improvement End of year update

Savings Targets In March 2021 the Council approved a balanced budget for 2021-2022
In March 2020 the Council approved a balanced budget for 2020-  Without the use of general reserves.

2021 without the use of general reserves. It is estimated that It is important to note that the financial implications of the pandemic have
further savings of £15.5 million are required in 2021-2022 rising to | significantly distorted the budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy.
£20.2 million in 2022-2023. Current projections indicate that having taken into account additional

government grant, there is a net cost pressure of over £6 million in 2021-

It is important to note that a number of assumptions have been : .
P P 2022 as a result of Covid. In order to set a balanced budget, this cost

made with regards to the level of resources that will be available

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



to the Council, and that there continues to be a considerable
amount of uncertainty with regards to future funding streams for
local authorities over the forthcoming Comprehesive Spending
Review period. At the point that further information is known it will
be incorporated into future reports to Councillors. Any reduction
in the Government’s allocation of funding to the Council would
have significant detrimental impact and further increase the
budget deficit forecast of the medium-term.

Due to Covid-19, government have announced that the Review of
Relative Needs and Resource will not be undertaken this year. It
is understood that a spending review will take place but we would
anticipate that this will be for one year only.

Council approved that work starts on developing budget reduction
and income generation proposasls for 2020-2021 onwards in line

ith the Five Year Finanical Strategy, with progress reported back
g Cabinet in July 2020.

Que to Covid-19 it has not been possible to progress this work.
rther we have identified that budget reductions and income
generation proposals built into the budget for 2020-2021 may not

be deliverable at this stage.

The Council must continue to provide information to MHCLG and
seek funding to mitigate the impact of Covid-19 both for 2020-
2021 and the medium term.

The Council must also continue to look at budget reduction
proposals to mitigate the impact of Covid-19 and to address the
medium term deficit.

Procurement, Contract Management and Monitoring

This will remain ongoing due to the changes to regulation and
legislation, particularly in the light of our exit from the EU.

pressure has been met from other efficiencies identified across the
Council.

During 2021-2022 work will continue to monitor the financial impact of
Covid to both inform the in year budget position and to inform medium
term forecasts.

Looing forward it is estimated that further savings of £25.4 million are
required in 2022-2023 rising to £29.6 million in 2023-2024 in order to set
balanced budgets.

These forecasts take into account the potential ongoing impact of Covid in
addition to the underlying budget pressures that face the Council.

In addition to the impact of Covid, there continutes to be significant
uncertainty about future funding streans for local authorities. At the time of
writing it is unclear when the Government will undertake the
Comprehensive Spending Review, Fair Funding Review, Business Rates
Reset and Business Rates Retention Review.

Work has started to address the budget deficit over the medium term and
updates will be brought to Cabinet throughout the year.

This will continue to remain ongoing due to the changes proposed in the
Government’s Green Paper on ‘Transforming public procurement’.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



Strategic Asset Plan

Review and Update the Strategic Asset Plan and Action Plan
taking into account the Our Space programme proposals. This
programme includes asset rationalisation of the portfolio
determining future direction of travel for each asset e.g. retain,
dispose or reuse (i.e. community asset transfer, public sector
partnering). The programme will identify and ensure that only
those land and property assets required for operational or
strategic purposes are to be retained and that a clear plan for their
development and operation is in place (including future
investment requirements). This will result in a more cost-efficient
property estate delivering running cost efficiencies, reduction in
carbon emissions and potential for achieving capital receipts.
Consideration will also be given as to how new income can be
generated from property assets whilst protecting the existing
i_%come.

&b

Q

®ivic Halls

%Iivery of the Civic Halls in accordance with any set budget and
in line with the set timeline will be closely monitored by the
Council throughout, and the Council will ensure that the contracts
in place are complied with.

GDPR

This is an ongoing issue in terms of ensuring compliance with
GDPR through regular training and continuing to provide
transparent reporting of the levels of compliance with GDPR.

Constitution review

Review and modernise the Council’s constitution and decision
making processes — this includes reviewing the Council’s Code of

We continue to review and update the Strategic Asset Plan and Action
Plan taking into account the Our Space programme proposals. This
programme includes asset rationalisation of the portfolio determining
future direction of travel for each asset e.g. retain, dispose or reuse (i.e.
community asset transfer, public sector partnering). The programme will
identify and ensure that only those land and property assets required for
operational or strategic purposes are to be retained and that a clear plan
for their development and operation is in place (including future
investment requirements). This will result in a more cost-efficient property
estate delivering running cost efficiencies, reduction in carbon emissions
and potential for achieving capital receipts. Consideration will also be
given as to how new income can be generated from property assets
whilst protecting the existing income.

The project is ongoing and the delivery of the Civic Halls continues and
remains closely monitored by the Council. As part of the project
governance, The Council will continue to ensure that all contracts are in
place and complied with.

Work has taken place throughout 2020-21 to ensure that the Council
continued to meet its obligations in GDPR terms notwithstanding the very
different ways of working having to be adopted as a result of the
pandemic. This has included regular reminders on ways of working and
focused support for relevant teams with greater risk.

As detailed above the Constituton has been reviewed and updated with a
number of changes being made. This process is continuing in 2021 with a

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



Conduct and ensuring that the constitution is easy to understand, | further set of changes to be brought to Council in 2021 including changes
easy to access and supports appropriate and effective decision to:

making, building on the positive approach to decision making that o Officer Delegations

has taken place during the Covid-19 pandemic. This also includes e Financial Procedure Rules

ensuring that there is an effective approach to policy development

. L . Employment Procedure Rules
and scrutiny within the Council. * i

9 abed

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



Action Plan for the Significant Governance Issues identified during 2020-2021 which will need addressing in 2021-2022

Based on the Council’s established risk management approach, the following issues have been assessed as being key for the purpose of the 2020-
2021 annual governance statement. Over the coming year appropriate actions to address these matters and further enhance governance
arrangements will be taken.

2021-2022 Key areas and actions for implementation Responsibility and

expected implementation
date

Savings Targets Director of Finance

In March 2021 the Council approved a balanced budget for 2021-2022 without the use of general reserves. March 2022
It is important to note that the financial implications of the pandemic have significantly distorted the budget and
Medium Term Financial Strategy. Current projections indicate that having taken into account additional government
grant, there is a net cost pressure of over £6 million in 2021-2022 as a result of Covid. In order to set a balanced
budget, this cost pressure has been met from other efficiencies identified across the Council. During 2021-2022
k will continue to monitor the financial impact of Covid to both inform the in year budget position and to inform
dium term forecasts.
«Q
LCDoking forward it is estimated that further savings of £25.4 million are required in 2022-2023 rising to £29.6 million
iy2023-2024 in order to set balanced budgets. These forecasts take into account the potential ongoing impact of
Covid in addition to the underlying budget pressures that face the Council.

In addition to the impact of Covid, there continutes to be significant uncertainty about future funding streans for local
authorities. At the time of writing it is unclear when the Government will undertake the Comprehensive Spending
Review, Fair Funding Review, Business Rates Reset and Business Rates Retention Review.

Work has started to address the budget deficit over the medium term and updates will be brought to Cabinet
throughout the year.

Procurement Director of Finance
In December 2020 the Government published a Green Paper on “Transforming public procurement’ which proposes | March 2022

a number of changes which would impact on the Council. Work will be undertaken to monitor the progress of this
paper and to respond appropriately to any resulting changes in legislation.

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



Contract Management

Contract management practises across the Council have been found to be inconsistent. The Council also utilises a
contract management system which is a central repository database that has a record of those contracts that have
been procured, but not those that have been commissioned locally. Consequently, the Council has decided to
transform how contract management is delivered and contracting process are measured to generate economic and
efficiency benefits aligned to the Council Plan and other relevant strategies, such as Wolverhampton Pound and
Relighting Our City.

The Council plans to have a one council approach to contract management. The intention is to develop a contract
management framework, establish external contract management training for officers and procure a contract
management software system. The system will provide greater visibility of contract performance and a strategic
oversight of contracts. These identified areas will provide a consistent and efficient method where possible and
contribute to continuous improvement whilst obtaining value for money. These improvements will also prepare the
Council in good stead for the forthcoming new procurement regulations as the Government’s green paper,
‘Transforming Public Procurement’, identified contract management and commercial life cycle as key areas which
v@ form part of the new procurement regulations.

«Q

D

Director of Finance
March 2022

E‘ﬂ;ﬁtegic Asset Plan

e have made progress on reviewing and challenging the Council’s asset portfolio as part of the Our Assets
Programme (formally referred to as Our Space programme), particularly in light of how services will operate moving
forward as part of Relighting our City. This has included developing six workstreams Asset Data, Asset Review,
Retained Estate, Civic Centre, Surplus Assets and Asset Disposals. The Strategic Asset Plan and Action Plan will
be updated following completion of this programme.

Deputy Chief Executive
March 2022

Civic Halls

Delivery of the Civic Halls in accordance with any set budget and in line with the set timeline will continue to be
closely monitored by the Council throughout, and the Council will ensure that the contracts in place are complied
with.

Director of Regeneration
March 2022

Constitution Review Conclusion

Director of Governance
March 2022

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED




Completion of the review of the constitution including revision of financial procedure rules, employment procedeure
rules, officer delegation and adoption of a new Corporate Code of Governance.

/9 abed

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED




Future Assurance
Where appropriate, a progress report on the implementation of the above actions from the key areas will be reported to the Audit and Risk

Committee during 2021-2022.
Certification

To the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements, as outlined above have been effectively operating during the year with the
exception of those areas identified as requiring improvement. We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to
further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified
during the review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our annual review.

lan Brookfield, Leader of the Council

Date:

Tim Johnson, Chief Executive

Date:

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 9

CITY or . . 5
woLvirnameron |AUdIt and Risk Committee
COUNCIL 21 June 2021

Report title Annual External Audit Letter
Accountable director Claire Nye, Director of Finance
Originating service Strategic Finance
Accountable employee(s) Emma Bland Finance Business Partner
Tel 01902 553928
Email Emma.Bland2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been None

considered by

Recommendations for noting:
The Audit and Risk Committee is asked to note:

1. The Annual Audit Letter provided by Grant Thornton.

Page 69



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

6.0
6.1
7.0
7.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Purpose

To update the Audit and Risk Committee on the key findings arising from the work carried
out at the Council, its subsidiaries (the group) and the West Midlands Pension Fund for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

Background

Annually Grant Thornton provide a commentary on the results of their work to the Council
and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that they wish to draw to the attention
of the public. A copy of the Annual Audit Letter is attached at Appendix A.

Financial Implications

The audit of the accounts and the Value for Money conclusion by the external auditors, are
important elements of the accountability and transparency of the Council’s finances.
[EB/10062021/M]

Legal implications

The Secretary of State makes the Accounts and Audit Regulations in exercise of powers
conferred by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 require the 2019-2020 Statement of Accounts be produced in
accordance with proper practice.

This is exemplified by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting which is
published by CIPFA. These regulations also require that the accounts are approved by
30 August 2020 and published by 30 November 2020.

[TC/10062021/Y]

Equalities implications
There are no equality implications arising from this report.

All other Implications
There are no other implications arising from this report.
Schedule of background papers

There are no relevant preceding reports.

Page 70



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8.0 Appendices

8.1 Annual External Audit Letter

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



o Grant Thornton

The Annual Audit Letter
for City of Wolverhampton Council

.-
Y@r ended 31 March 2020
)

9 April 2021
Updated 6 May 2021




Commercial in confidence

Contents

000

!

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

o
g Mark Stocks
® Key Audit Partner
~ !

N T 01212325437

E: mark.c.stocks@uk.gt.com

Nicola Coombe

Senior Manager
T: 0121 232 5206

E: nicola.coombe@uk.gt.com

Matthew Berrisford

Assistant Manager
T: 0121 232 5352
E: matthew.j.berrisford@uk.gt.com

Section

1. Executive Summary

2. Audit of the Financial Statements

3. Value for Money conclusion

Appendices

A Reports issued and fees

B Recommendations raised

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021

Page

17



Commercial in confidence

Executive Summary

Purpose

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the
work that we have carried out at City of Wolverhampton Council ( the
Council) and its subsidiaries (the group) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to
the group and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to
draw to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed
the National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor
Guidance Note (AGN) 07 — 'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed
findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit and Risk Committee as
thoe@ charged with governance in our Audit Findings Report on 26
Nogmber 2020.

Ouwaork
\I

Respective responsibilities

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAQO's Code of Audit Practice,

which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the

Act). Our key responsibilities are to:

» give an opinion on the Council and group's financial statements (section two)

» assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section
three).

In our audit of the Council and group's financial statements, we comply with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the
NAO.

Ma‘ti;lriality
group's gross cost of services.

We determined materiality for the audit of the group's financial statements to be £12,500,000, which is approximately 1.5% of the

Financial Statements opinion

We gave an unqualified opinion on the group's financial statements on 30 November 2020.

We included an emphasis of matter paragraph in our report in respect of the uncertainty over valuations of the Council's land and
buildings and investment properties and the property assets of its pension fund given the Coronavirus pandemic. This does not
affect our opinion that the statements give a true and fair view of the Council's financial position and its income and expenditure

for the year.

Whole of Government Accounts
(WGA)

On 6 May we completed our work on the Council’s consolidation return following guidance issued by the NAO.
The work has been protracted due to technical issues wit the Government’s central system (OSCAR), which meant the Council

were unable to provide a full “cycle 2 auditor’s report” as required until 9 March. Details of our findings are included on page 15.

Use of statutory powers

We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

Executive Summary

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources. We reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 30 November 2020.

Certificate We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of City of Wolverhampton Council on 6 May 2021
upon completion of the WGA work.

Working with the Council

The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic had a significant impact Restrictions for non-essential travel meant both Council and audit staff conducting the
on the normal operations of the group and Council, such as administration of audit on a wholly remote basis. This necessitated greater reliance on technology than

ts to businesses, closure of schools and car parks with additional usual for these remote working arrangements eg video calling, physical verification of
clinllenges of reopening services under new government guidelines as well  assets and completeness accuracy of information produced by the entity.
égredeployment of staff to work on all of the above. As a key body in the
fro\rl\tline response to the pandemic, the Council has worked closely with key We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation provided
pantners to provide support to businesses, support to individuals, and to us during our audit by the Council's staff.
reassign staff to areas of need.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Council has since engaged with local people to develop a plan aimed at May 2021
helping Wolverhampton recover from the impact of the pandemic: Relighting
Our City of Wolverhampton Council Recovery Commitment.

The Council sensibly undertook a trial run ahead of lockdown being
announced to ensure that its systems were able to function remotely, which
enabled teething problems in terms of access to systems to be worked
through.

Despite the significant impact authorities were nevertheless required to
prepare financial statements as normal with the relevant accounting
standards and the Code of Audit Practice, albeit to an extended deadline for
the preparation of the financial statements up to 31 August 2020 and the date
for audited financial statements to 30 November 2020.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Our audit approach

Materiality

In our audit of the group's financial statements, we use the concept of
materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in
evaluating the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of the
misstatement in the financial statements that would lead a reasonably
knowledgeable person to change or influence their economic decisions.

We determined materiality for the audit of the group financial statements to
be £12,500,000, which is approximately 1.5% of the group’s gross cost of
services. We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial
stgtements to be £12,400,000, which is approximately 1.5% of the Council’s
gagss cost of services. We used this benchmark as, in our view, users of the
gr@up and Council's financial statements are most interested in where the
g@p and Council has spent its revenue in the year.

We also set a lower level of specific materiality of £625,000 and £620,000 for
the group and Council respectively, above which we reported errors to the
Audit and Risk Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

We also set a lower level of specific materiality of £40k for senior officers
remuneration as we considered the disclosures of senior manager’'s
remuneration to be sensitive as we believe these disclosures are of specific
interest to a reader of the accounts.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021

The scope of our audit

Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:

» the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;

+ the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

» the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view.

We also read the remainder of the Statement of Accounts to check it is consistent with
our understanding of the Council and with the financial statements included in the
Statement of Accounts on which we gave our opinion.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit
Practice. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council and
group’s business and is risk based.

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to
these risks and the results of this work.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Covid-19 We worked with management to understand the Our audit work has not identified any specific issues in
The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to implications the response to the Covid-19 respect of Covid-19. However,

unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent pandemic had on the organisation’s ability to

* In their reports, the Council’s internal and external valuers
confirmed that as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and the
subsequent lockdown and impact on market activity, less

business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expected | prepare the financial statements and update
circumstances to have an impact on the production and audit of the | financial forecasts and assessed the

financial implications for our materiality calculations. it d a higher d ¢ i hould b
; certainty — and a higher degree of caution — should be
ﬁ:s%g?gts for the year ended 31 March 2020, included and not We liaised with other audit suppliers, regulators attache)c; to their va?uationsgthan would normally be the
Q and government departments to co-ordinate case. Their valuations are reported on the basis of ‘material
_ practical cross-sector responses to issues as luati rtainty’
« SRemote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to and when they arose. We have evaluated: valuation uncertainty .
critical front line duties potentially impacting on the quality and ] ) « Similarly, the West Midlands Pension Fund has included a
ing of the production of the financial statements, and the *  the adequacy of the disclosures in the material valuation uncertainty disclosure in relation to its
evidence we could obtain through physical observation financial statemen_ts. that arose in light of the property funds which form part of the pension scheme
Covid-19 pandemic; assets as a result of Covid-19.
» Volatility of financial and property markets increasing the - whether sufficient audit evidence could be As a result we have included Emphasis of Matters
uncertainty of assumptions applied by management to asset obtained through remote technology;

valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and the reliability paragraphs highlighting these matters within our auditor's

. . * whether sufficient audit evidence could be report. These do not affect our opinion that the statements
of evidence we could obtain to corroborate management . N . L I . "
. obtained to corroborate significant give a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position
estimates . . :
management estimates such as assets and and the income and expenditure for the year but are added
the pension fund liability valuations ; to indicate a matter which is disclosed appropriately but

+ Financial uncertainty requiring management to reconsider

financial forecasts supporting their going concern assessment ~ © management’s assumptions that underpin which we consider is fundamental to a readers

understanding of the financial statements.

on whether material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 the revised financial forecasts and the impact
months from the anticipated date of approval of the audited on management’s going concern The Council also updated its disclosure of post balance
financial statements have arisen; and assessment; sheet events, to include information relating to funding
- engaged the use of auditor experts in received since 1 April 2020 and other significant events.
+ Disclosures within the financial statements required significant respect of Property, Plant & Equipment
revision to reflect the unprecedented situation and its impact on (PP&E) valuations — refer to pages 7 and 8
the preparation of the financial statements as at 31 March 2020 for further detail on this work.

in accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material
uncertainties.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks (continued)

These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our audit plan

Valuation of land and buildings and investment
properties

Council Housing £838.7m
Land and Buildings — Other £429.4m
Investment Properties £33.9m

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a rolling basis
to gsure that the carrying value is not materially different

frofR the current value or fair value (for surplus assets) at the
fingpcial statements date.

Tht?)llaluation represents a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements due to the size of the
numbers involved and the sensitivity of this estimate to
changes in key assumptions.

Management have engaged the services of valuers to
estimate the current value as at 31 March 2020.

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings,
particularly revaluations and impairments, as a significant
risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement.

We do not consider this risk to apply to the other components
within the group as neither Wolverhampton Homes Limited or
City of Wolverhampton Housing Company Limited has land
and buildings, which it carries as property, plant and
equipment.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021

How we responded to the risk

We have:

evaluated management's processes
and assumptions for the calculation of
the estimate, the instructions issued
to the valuation experts and the scope
of their work, which has included the
use of our own value to assist with
our review and challenge

evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
valuation experts

written to the valuers to confirm the
basis on which the valuations were
carried out

tested on a sample basis revaluations
of the Council’s operational
properties, investment properties, and
HRA properties during the year to
ensure they have been input correctly
into the Council’s asset register and
financial Statements

Findings and conclusions

We have no concerns over the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the internal and external valuation experts used by the Council.

Our challenge identified that:

« the Council’s valuer had provided an incorrect valuation for one of the
Council’s schools in the previous year due to a spreadsheet error.
The carrying value of this asset was revised upwards by £7,707k.

« capital expenditure on a building had not been taken into account in
its revaluation. As a result the valuation of this asset was increased
by £648k.

« the valuation report for Council Housing did not reflect additions and
disposals made during the year. The value of these assets was
subsequently adjusted to take account of these movements.

« there was a significant increase between last year’s Council Housing
valuation and this from £751m to £838m. The Council was unable to
explain the reasons for the increase, predominantly due to the
Council having a change in valuer for his financial year. The Council
therefore commissioned its new valuers to value the Council
Dwellings as at 31 March 2019 and also at 31 March 2018 to assist
with its explanations. As a result of this exercise there is a variance of
£85,265k as at 31 March 2018 and £69,854k as at 31 March 2019.
Given the significant of these differences the accounts have been
amended accordingly for this year and as a prior period adjustment.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks (continued)
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of land and buildings and continued.... » an input error occurred within a spreadsheet used to calculate the valuation of the Council
investment properties housing stock which had an impact of £9,965k.

continued....

« garages had been valued inconsistently between the current year and prior year. This
indicated that there was a potential understanding of approximately £3,901k in the prior
year, which was not considered to be material and therefore not adjusted.

+ areconciliation between the valuer’s report for Investment Property and the Asset Register
has identified one asset which has been incorrectly included within the Other Land and
Building category, instead of Investment Property. Other Land and Buildings are therefore
overstated by £713k, and Investment Property understated by the same amount. This has
not been adjusted on the grounds of materiality.

08 abed

A significant amount of work was undertaken as part of our audit challenge involving a
significant amount of time and effort both on our part as well as on the part of the Council’s
estates team, finance team and valuer. We are aware that the Council is planning an
increased amount of its own quality assurance processes for future years such that any errors
are identified and resolved prior to the audit process.

As noted on page 6, the Council’s valuers confirmed that as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic
and the subsequent lockdown and impact on market activity, less certainty — and a higher
degree of caution — should be attached to their valuations than would normally be the case.
Their valuations are reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’.

We have therefore included an Emphasis of Matter — ‘effects of Covid-19 on the valuation of
land and buildings’ within our Independent auditor's report. This highlights the Council’s
disclosures to users of the financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks (continued)

These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our audit plan

Valuation of net pension liability
Net pension liability — Council - £624.6m
Net pension liability — Group - £658.8m

The Council's pension fund net liability, as
reflected in its balance sheet as the net defined
benefit liability, represents a significant
estimate in the financial statement.

Theaypension fund net liability is considered a
si§R¥ficant estimate due to the size of the
numoers involved and the sensitivity of the
es@ate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the
Authority’s pension fund net liability as a
significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material
misstatement.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021

How we responded to the risk

We have:

updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place
by management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability
is not materially misstated and evaluated the design of the associated
controls;

evaluated the instructions issued by management to their
management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the scope of
the actuary’s work;

assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary
who carried out the authority’s pension fund valuation;

assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided
by the Authority to the actuary to estimate the liability;

tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and
disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with the
actuarial report from the actuary; undertaken procedures to confirm
the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing
the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and
performing any additional procedures suggested within the report;
and

obtained assurances from the auditor of West Midlands Pension
Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of
membership data; contributions data and benefits data sent to the
actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in the
pension fund financial statements.

Findings and conclusions

The Authority’s net pension liability at 31 March 2020 is
£624.6m (PY £594.6m). A full actuarial valuation is
required every three years. The latest full actuarial
valuation was completed in 2019. A roll forward
approach is used in intervening periods which utilises
key assumptions such as life expectancy, discount
rates, salary growth and investment returns.

We have compared the assumptions used by the
Council’s actuary against industry benchmarks. Based
on the work performed we are able to conclude that
management’s assumptions overall are reasonable.

There has been a £19m net actuarial gain during
2019/20. The pension fund auditor has included an
emphasis of matter in their audit report on the accounts
of West Midlands Pension Fund to reflect a material
valuation uncertainty given by the valuers on the
Pension Fund’s Property Investments (as a result of the
impact of Covid-19).

The Council has made appropriate disclosures
explaining this uncertainty, which we have drawn to the
reader’s attention in our auditor’s report by way of an
Emphasis of Matter paragraph. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks (continued)
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work.

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions
Management override of internal controls We have: We identified from our review of the journal control
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the |« evaluated the design effectiveness of management | environment in previous years that both the Chief
rislsaf management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. controls over journals Accountant and the Director of Finance had the
Q » analysed the journals listing and determined the ability to post journals. From our work during this
ThexCouncil faces external scrutiny of its spending and this could criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals year’s audit we note that journal posting rights for
poféntially place management under undue pressure in terms of how gained an understanding of the accounting these individuals have now been removed. However,
the®oreport performance. estimates, judgements applied and decisions made there was a period during the financial year ending
N by management and considered their 31 March 2020 whereby the ability to post journals
We therefore identified management override of control, in particular reasonableness still existed. As this does not constitute best practice
journals, management estimates and transactions outside the course ¢ obtained a full listing of journal entries, identified we engineered our testing to obtain an appropriate
of business as a significant risk, which was one of the most and tested unusual journal entries for level of assurance that this weakness did not give
significant assessed risks of material misstatement. appropriateness rise to a possible material misstatement. From the
» evaluated the rationale for any changes in testing performed to date we are content that these
accounting policies or significant unusual individuals did not post any journals during the
transactions. period.

From the sample testing of journals we have found
that they were appropriate, eligible and valid, and
can be agreed to supporting evidence.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Pension Fund Significant Audit Risks

These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work on the pension fund.

Risks identified in our audit plan

Covid-19
General

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to
unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent business
continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expect current
circumstances will have an impact on the production and audit of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, including and not limited to:

. ote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical front line
duti's may impact on the quality and timing of the production of the financial
stet@ments, and the evidence we can obtain through physical observation

. \fo%tility of financial and property markets will increase the uncertainty of
as ptions applied by management to asset valuation, and the reliability of
evidence we can obtain to corroborate management estimates

* For instruments classified as fair value through profit and loss there may be
a need to review the Level 1-3 classification of the instruments if trading may
have reduced to such an extent that, quoted prices are not readily and
regularly available and therefore do not represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions.

» Whilst the nature of the Fund and its funding position (i.e. not in a winding
up position or no cessation event) means the going concern basis of
preparation remains appropriate management may need to consider whether
material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 months from the anticipated
date of approval of the audited financial statements have arisen; and

» Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant revision to
reflect the unprecedented situation and its impact on the preparation of the
financial statements as at 31 March 2020 in accordance with IAS1,
particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021

How we responded to the risk

We worked with management to understand the
implications the response to the Covid-19 pandemic
has on the organisation’s ability to prepare the
financial statements and update financial forecasts
and assessed the implications for our materiality
calculations which ultimately remained the same.

We liaised with other audit suppliers, regulators and
government departments to co-ordinate practical
cross sector responses to issues as and when they
arose.

We have:

» evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in the
financial statements that arose in light of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

+ evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could
be obtained in the absence of physical

 verification of assets through remote technology

» evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could
be obtained to corroborate significant

* management estimates such as asset valuations

+ evaluated management’'s assumptions that
underpin the revised financial forecasts and

+ the impact on management’s going concern
assessment;

» engaged the use of auditor experts for high risk
estimates such as the Directly Held Property and
complex Insurance assets.

Findings and conclusions

We extended and enhanced audit procedures
in areas considered to be particularly at risk,
such as Level 3 asset valuations and Directly
Held Property as a sub sector of the same.
We also enhanced our procedures around
Information Produced by the Entity (IPE) to
ensure that technology such as screen
sharing and video calls were utilised to gain
additional assurances over reports produced
by the entity where lockdown restrictions
meant we could not be physically present or
in relation to prime documents where there
may have been considered a risk of
manipulation.

We have no concerns to report in relation to
the impact of Covid-19 on the Fund’s ability to
operate remotely or around IPE. However, we
included an Emphasis of Matter paragraph
highlighting the valuation material uncertainty
disclosures associated with the Fund’s direct
property holdings as a result of Covid-19. Our
opinion is not modified in this respect.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Pension Fund Significant Audit Risks (continued)
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work on the pension fund.

Risks identified in our audit plan

Covid-19 continued....

Disputes between oil producing countries causes
a further significant deterioration in the value of
global equities

As at March 2020, loss of investor confidence
following the spread of the Covid-19 virus and the fall
in global oil prices had caused a significant decrease
in fR& value of global equities. Following our plan
issgred in March 2020, we subsequently upgraded
theysks associated with Covid-19 and wider
ec%omic instability to a significant risk.

D . .
Management override of internal controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable
presumed risk that the risk of management over-ide
of controls is present in all entities. The Pension
Fund faces external scrutiny of its spending and
stewardship of funds and this could potentially place
management under undue pressure in terms of how
they report performance.

We therefore identified management override of
controls, in particular journals, management
estimates and transactions outside of the course of
normal business as a significant risk, which was one
of the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021

How we responded to the risk

continued....

We:

+ evaluated the design effectiveness of management
controls over journals

« analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria
for selecting high risk unusual journals

« tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after
the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
corroboration

+ gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and
critical judgements applied made by management and
considered their reasonableness with regard to
corroborative evidence;

+ evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting
policies, estimates of significant unusual transactions.

Findings and conclusions

As a result of the pandemic and remote working
arrangements, additional scrutiny was applied to IPE (as
previously described) and we ensured that journals designed
to affect financial performance at year end were included in
our sample.

We do not have any concerns to report in this area.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Pension Fund Significant Audit Risks (continued)
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work on the pension fund.

Risks identified in our audit plan

The valuation of Level 3 investments is
incorrect

By their nature Level 3 investment valuations
lack observable inputs.

These valuations therefore represent a
significant estimate by management in the
financial statements due to the size of the
numbers involved and the sensitivity of this
esfildate to changes in key assumptions.

U&r ISA 315 significant risks often relate to
sigficant non-routine transactions and
judgemental matters.

Le\(/Je] 3 investments by their very nature require
a significant degree of judgement to reach an
appropriate valuation at year end.

Management utilise the services of investment
managers as valuation experts to estimate the
fair values of these assets.

We therefore identified valuation of Level 3
investments as a significant risk, which was one
of the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement, and a key audit matter.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021

How we responded to the risk

As part of our audit work we have:
» evaluated management’s processes for valuing Level 3 investments;

* reviewed the nature and basis of estimated values and considered what
assurance management has over the year end valuations provided for these types
of investments and ensure that the requirements of the Code are met;

* independently requested year-end confirmations from investment managers;

+ for a sample of investments, tested the valuation by comparing the value per the
General Ledger (typically based on an investor statement as at the reporting date
or, in the case of harder to value assets, the latest capital statement available
adjusted for known cash movements in the final quarter of the year) to direct
confirmation of capital balances from Investment Managers and, where available,
latest audited financial statements.

+ completed sample testing of purchases and sales to prime documentation across
the period to support our reconciliation of opening and closing balances.

In addition to the above procedures, identified in our audit plan, as a result of the
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic we varied and enhanced our approach as follows:

+ in addition to reviewing control reports and audited financial statements where
available, we also requested responses from fund managers around their use of
the most appropriate International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation
(IPEV )[or equivalent] methodology in their valuation books, specifically updated in
the light of the most recent guidance available in relation to Covid-19.

+ we also performed an analysis by market sector of the Fund’s holdings, with a
particular focus on hard to value assets, with a view to identifying any particular
asset classes or sectors which we viewed as a particular risk as a result of the
economic impact of the pandemic and provided further challenge to the Fund
around the valuations of those assets.

Findings and conclusions

We identified an extrapolated £33m
possible overstatement of Net Asset
Values in relation to Level 3 investments.
This is principally a function of the timing
of the production of financial statements
and the particular challenges faced in the
markets in March 2020; per the Fund’s
accounting policies, year end values for
hard to value assets frequently contain 31
December values adjusted for cash which
are then assessed by the auditor to
ensure that the carrying value per the
financial statements is not materially
different from the fair value as at the audit
date. We would typically expect to see a
number of small variances as a result of
this, usually netting out to a below trivial
(and therefore non reportable) variance.
The higher than usual variance is
indicative of the wider uncertainty in the
markets at the balance sheet date, but is
not a material difference and does not
indicate any weakness in management’s
arrangements for estimating investment
values at year end. As the figure is an
extrapolation it is not possible to adjust
for it and management have determined
not to undertake additional work to
quantify exact differences on the basis
that the difference is not material.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Pension Fund Significant Audit Risks (continued)
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work on the pension fund.

Risks identified in our audit plan

Valuation of Directly Held Property (Level 3 Investment)
(Annual Revaluation)

The Fund revalues its directly held property on an annual
basis to ensure that the carrying value is not materially
different from the fair value at the financial statements date.
This valuation represents a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements due to the size of the
nua@ers involved (£981 million as at 31 March 2019) and the
seqpitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions.

Q .
Maiprgement have engaged the services of a valuer to
es%ate the current value as at 31 March 2020.

W& herefore identified valuation of directly held property,
particularly revaluations and impairments, as a significant
risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement and a key audit matter.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021

How we responded to the risk

As part of our audit work we have:

evaluated management’s processes and assumptions
for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued
to the valuation experts and the scope of their work;

independently requested year end confirmations from
the valuer and supporting documents as relevant from
the Fund’s property managers;

evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the valuation expert;

written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the
valuations were carried out;

challenged the information and assumptions used by the
valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding, the Fund'’s valuer’s report and the
assumptions that underpinned the valuation; and

in addition to the stated procedures per our audit plan, in
response to wider market uncertainty relating to property
valuations, we have engaged an auditor’s expert (in this
case, a firm of RICS qualified surveyors) to perform a
detailed review of the methodology and assumptions
employed by the valuer. To compliment this we also
undertook additional audit procedures to evaluate
possible impairment by assessing cash collection rates
and ongoing covenant strength.

Findings and conclusions

Our audit work has not identified any issues in
relation to the Fund’s valuation of its Direct Property
holdings. However, the valuer has included a
material uncertainty clause in relation to some of the
Fund'’s direct property holdings to reflect market
conditions at the reporting date.

We are therefore including an Emphasis of Matter
paragraph highlighting the valuation material
uncertainty disclosures within the Fund’s financial
statements associated with the Fund’s direct property
as a result of Covid-19.

Our opinion is not modified in this respect..



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the group's financial statements on 30
November 2020.

Preparation of the financial statements

The Council presented us with draft financial statements in June in
accordance with the agreed timescale, and provided a good set of working
papers to support them. The finance team responded promptly and efficiently
to our queries during the course of the audit.

Restrictions for non-essential travel has meant both Council and audit staff
have had to adapt to new remote access working arrangements. This has
been driven primarily by the use of technology and regular communication
between the teams. We have both utilised video calling, screen sharing and
othegmeans to the fullest of our ability in order to carry out audit procedures
angerify the completeness and accuracy of information.

Issgfs arising from the audit of the financial statements
We~gported the key issues from our audit to the Council’s Audit and Risk
Committee on 26 November 2020.

In addition to the key audit risks reported above, we identified issues for
which recommendations were raised for the Council’s management to
address for the next financial year. These are included as an appendix to this
letter.

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are also required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement
and Narrative Report. It published them on its website alongside the draft
Statement of Accounts in June.

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant
supporting guidance. We confirmed that both documents were consistent
with the financial statements prepared by the Council and with our
knowledge of the Council.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021

Pension fund accounts

We gave an unqualified opinion on the pension fund accounts of West Midlands
Pension Fund on 30 November 2020. We also reported the key issues from our audit
of the pension fund accounts to the Pensions Committee (a sub-group whom we have
determined we are required to communicate with) and the Audit & Risk

Committee of the City of Wolverhampton Council who we have determined are those
charged with governance on 30 September 2020.

In addition to the key audit risks reported above, we identified issues during our audit
that we asked management to address for the next financial year. These are included
as an appendix to this letter.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)
We have completed our work in line with instructions provided by the NAO, as the
Council has met the threshold above which, work is required to be performed.

As noted on page 3 the work has been protracted due to technical issues with the
Government’s central system (OSCAR), which meant the Council were unable to
provide a full “cycle 2 auditor’s report” as required until 9 March.

We identified as part of our review that an amendment of £7m due to be made
between miscellaneous income and miscellaneous expenditure in order that the return
matched the accounts and supporting workpapers had not been made. Furthermore it
could not be corrected as the cycle 2 report had been inadvertently submitted by the
Council as “final” to the WGA.

We therefore reported this difference along with other unadjusted misstatements as
reported to you in our Audit Findings Report, to the National Audit Office and HM
Treasury as required.



Commercial in confidence

Audit of the Financial Statements

Other statutory powers

We also have additional powers and duties under the Act, including powers
to issue a public interest report, make written recommendations, apply to the
Court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law, and to give
electors the opportunity to raise questions about the Council's accounts and
to raise objections received in relation to the accounts.

We have not deployed any of our statutory powers in relation to the year
ending 31 March 2020 in respect of City of Wolverhampton Council.

Certificate of closure of the audit

On completion of our work on WGA we were able to certify that we have
compjeted the audit of the financial statements of City of Wolverhampton
Cogcil on 6 May 2021.

88 °

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

Value for Money conclusion

Background Overall Value for Money conclusion

We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper
Practice, following the guidance issued by the NAO in April 2020 which arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate: for the year ending 31 March 2020.

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions
and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for
taxpayers and local people.

Key findings
Ouir first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and
id%?tify the risks where we concentrated our work.

«Q
TKE risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf.

(00]
Asqaart of our Audit Findings report agreed with the Council in November

2020, we agreed recommendations to address our findings, which are set out
on the following pages.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

Value for Money conclusion

Value for Money Risks

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions
Civic Halls Refurbishment As part of our work we have reviewed progress We have concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated
We noted in our 2018/19 VFM conclusion that this being made in relation to this Civic Halls and the Council has proper arrangements in place.

refurbishment, both from a project management
and budgetary point of view, and also assess
how the lessons learned are being applied to
other capital projects.

has been a difficult and complex project for the
Council and that the management arrangement for
thetgivic Halls were not adequate and that therefore
a %alified “except for” value for money conclusion

However we noted that there continue to be risks
associated with the delivery of this project:

wgg given. Given the conclusion reached in the To aid this latter point we have discussed + The Council needs to ensure that with any value

pri&s year, it is therefore considered appropriate to internal audit’s involvement in the various project engineering carried out, the project isn’t unrealistically

foll@w this risk up for the 2019/20 to assess the and programme boards and are satisfied from shoe-horned into a budget, as there is a risk that the

Council’s progress. our discussions and the supporting resulting project is sub-optimal and does not meet the
documentation supplied that appropriate original objectives

governance arrangements are in place and that
internal audit are supporting from an advisory
capacity.

» The Council needs to continue monitoring and
reporting delivery of the project at all levels on a
frequent basis to ensure that when problems arise it
can be agile in its response.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

Value for Money conclusion

Value for Money Risks (continued)

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Financial resilience As part of our work we have reviewed the On the basis of the work performed we have concluded
The Authority has historically managed its finances = Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy and that the risk was sufficiently mitigated and the Council has
well, achieving financial targets. The Budget and financial monitoring reports and assess the proper arrangements in place to ensure it plans finances
Medium Term Financial Strategy considered by assumptions used and savings being achieved. effectively to support the sustainable delivery of strategic
approved by Full Council in February 2019 identified priorities and using appropriate cost and performance
thatthe budget for 2019/20 was in balance without information to support informed decision making.

theyjise of general reserves.

H&Rever, the Medium Term Financial Strategy
re\ﬂ)ewed as at the time of planning noted that the
Cq‘_&cil was faced with finding further budget
reduction and income generation proposals totalling
£19.5 million. The Council therefore needs to
maintain focus on delivering its budget in 2019/20
and focussing on savings for 2020/21 and thereafter
if it is to remain financially resilient and is able to
address the projected future budget deficits.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

Value for Money conclusion

Value for Money Risks (continued)

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions
Strategic Asset Management As part of our work we have reviewed the work On the basis of the work performed, we concluded that the
We reported last year that while we thought carried out since prior year to assess whether risk was sufficiently mitigated and the Council has proper
arrangements were adequate, the speed of the agtions have been undertaken and are arrangements in place for m_anaging and ut_ilisin_g ggsets
implementation of the Council’s Strategic Asset effective. effectively to support the delivery of strategic priorities.
Magpgement Plan was slow. As this remains high We noted however that while the arrangements are in
on@he Council's agenda we will revisit progress place there is limited delivery as at the time we signed our
aé@nst this for 2019/20 through discussion with auditor’s report. We recommended further action as noted
off@rs and review of relevant documents. below, which we will follow up as part of our audit in

N respect of the year ended 31 March 2021:

Further action is needed to:
+ dispose of properties that are not needed
* manage FM costs within budget

+ secure better utilisation of buildings by finalising
agreements whereby office space is shared with the
Council’s partners.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

A. Reports issued and fees

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Reports issued

Report Date issued
Audit Plan March 2020
Audit Findings Report November 2020
Annual Audit Letter April 2021

U

Q
F%s

© Planned Actual fees 2018/19 fees *Audit fee variation - City of Wolverhampton Council

w £ £ £ As outlined in our audit plan, the 2019-20 scale fee published by PSAA
Statutory audit 170,210 198,360 189,428 of £145,860 assumes that the scope of the audit does not significantly

. - change. There are a number of areas where the scope of the audit has
Audit of subsidiary company 28,285 28285 NAI" changed, which has led to additional work. These are set out in the
Wolverhampton Homes Limited
table overleaf.

Audit of subsidiary company Clty of 22 500 22 500 N/A
Wolverhampton Housing Company ’ ’
Limited (trading as WV Living) ** Audit fee variation - West Midlands Pension fund
Audit of subsidiary company Yoo 14,000 14,000 15,000 The change in planned and actual fees represents an additional fee
Recruit Limited (not consolidated on arising of £7,295 to reflect impact as a result of Covid-19.
grounds of materiality and not
therefore not included in auditor’s
remuneration note)
Audit of Pension Fund 48,636 55,931 48,618
Total fees 283,631 319,076 253,046

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

A. Reports issued and fees

The table below shows the planned variations to the original scale fee for 2019/20 based on our best estimate at the audit planning stage as well as further issues
identified during the course of the audit, which have incurred additional fees. All fee variations are subject to PSAA approval.

Audit area £ Rationale for fee variation
Scale fee 145,860
Raising the bar 5,000 The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has highlighted that the quality of work by all audit firms needs to improve across local audit.

This required additional supervision and leadership, as well as additional challenge and scepticism in areas such as journals,
estimates, financial resilience and information provided by the entity.

Materiality 4,000 For major audits, of which the Council is one — we reduced the materiality level, reflecting the higher profile of local audit. This
entailed increased scoping and sampling.
P ions — valuation of net pension 3,500 We have increased the granularity, depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of sampling, additional levels of challenge
liglylities under International Auditing and explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting.
dard (IAS) 19
pFR Valuation 4,350 We engaged our own audit expert — (Wilks, Head & Eve) and increased the volume and scope of our audit work to ensure an
E adequate level of audit scrutiny and challenge over the assumptions that underpin PPE valuations.
PPE Valuation — work of experts 2,500 We engaged our own audit expert — (Wilks, Head & Eve) to support us in our audit of PPE.
IFRS 16 - Leases 2,500 IFRS 16 requires a leased asset, previously accounted for as an operating lease off balance sheet, to be recognised as a ‘right of

use’ asset and corresponding liability on the balance sheet. Initially this was from from 1 April 2020 but the standard was later
delayed. This reflects our initial work on this standard.

Covid-19 time impact 16,000 The most significant impact in terms of delivery is the move to remote working. We, as other auditors, have experienced delays
and inefficiencies as a result of remote working. In many instances the delays are caused by our inability to sit with an officer to
discuss a query or working paper. Gaining an understanding via Teams or phone is more time-consuming.

To reflect the significance of the additional work required we have proposed an uplift to our fees for 2019/20 of circa 15%.

Technical accounting issues 9,250 As noted on page 7, there was a significant increase between last year's Council Housing valuation and this from £751m to £838m
and we incurred significant time over and above what would usually be expected to ascertain the reasons for this movement. The
Council subsequently obtained additional valuations, which therefore necessitated additional review.

WV Living 5,400 In order to inform our review of the valuation of inventory in the group accounts or the valuation of the loans made by the Council

to its subsidiary, City of Wolverhampton housing Company, WV Living, we engaged internal experts to review the company’s
business plan.

Revised fee 198,360

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

A. Reports issued and fees continued

Fees for non-audit services: City of Wolverhampton

Council Non- audit services
» For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant
Service Fees £ Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the group. The table

] ] above summarises all non-audit services which were identified.
Audit related services

- Certification of housing capital receipts grant 2,750 * We have considered whether non-audit services might be perceived
2018-19 as a threat to our independence as the group’s auditor and have
S:DU Certification of Teachers Pension Return 4,500 ensured that appropriate safeguards are put in place.
L% Certification of Housing Benefit Claim 16,000 The non-audit services listed herewith are consistent with the group’s
© policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.
ol

Non-Audit related services
- None -

Fees for non-audit services: West Midlands Pension

Fund

Service Fees £
Audit related services £9,250
- Provision of IAS 19 to auditors of member

employers

Non-Audit related services £5,000

- Review of the utilisation of Integrated Transport
Authority fund

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

B. Recommendations — City of Wolverhampton Council

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations
Annual Governance Statement We recommend that management keep its group boundary under review and ensure
The Annual Governance Statement is required to set out the governance that future Annual Governance Statements include details in respect of all
arrangements in respect of the group, and not just the Council. consolidated entities within the group accounts.
Management response
Agreed — we will keep our group boundary under review and ensure that this is
reflected in future Annual Governance Statements and that they include details in
respect of all consolidated entities within the group accounts.
Related Parties The related parties note in the financial statements has been revised following audit
We discussed with officers during planning, the need to revisit the related feedback, and we recommend that the Council enhance its closedown procedures to
parties note as it involved over-disclosure thereby leading to the risk that ensure that on_Iy related parties meetlng the.deﬂnltlons are cons@ered, and only
o material and pertinent information was being obscured. those transactions deemed to be material with such parties are disclosure.
8 There are specific criteria set out in the Code at section 3.9.2, which must Management response
D be met in order for a related party to be defined as such and the Agreed — this has been taken on board.
O preparation of the related parties note needs to have mind to this guidance.
(S}
Valuation process We recommend that the Council increase the amount of its own quality assurance
A number of amendments were made as a result of our audit findings in this processes for future years to understanding different methodologies and any
area significant variances in the valuations, such that any errors are identified and
resolved prior to the audit process.
Management response
The Council undertakes a significant amount of quality assurance work throughout
the year, however takes on board the need for enhanced scrutiny, particularly when
changing valuers with different methodologies.
Additions to Council Dwellings and Other Land and Buildings We recommend that in future the Council seek to inform its valuers of any such
The valuation reports for these assets did not originally reflect capital changes in year to determine the impact of any on the valuation of assets as at the
expenditure made during the year. Our expectation is that the value of balance sheet date.
such assets recognised on the Balance Sheet is consistent with the Management response
valuation as reported by the Council's external valuer and should include Whilst the Council’s treatment was in accordance with existing accounting policies
the fqll population of gssets as at the balance sheet date, i.e. including any already in place, we take onboard the requirement to change going forwards.
additions purchased in year.
Controls
® High - Significant effect on control system

Medium — Effect on control system

Low — Best practice

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

B. Recommendations — West Midlands Pension Fund

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations
Contributions — use of incorrect employer contributions rate by  Although the impact identified this year was clearly trivial to the financial statements, we
scheme employers feel that this is a control issue which could have a material impact on smaller employers
During the audit we noted a number of cases where employers used and has the possibility of larger impacts if issues are encountered at one of the Fund’s key
an incorrect Future Service Rate to calculate employer's employers. We recommend that the Fund look into ways of building in controls into UPM
contributions. In total, employers had applied a lower FSR rate which will notify employers of the error at the point of remittance.
which amounted to a net £150k overpayment of contributions. Management response
The Fund has controls in place to identify and highlight all instances where employers may
not have applied the Future Service contribution rate as expected. In many cases, the
differences are small and not necessarily as result of applying incorrect rates but due to
timing differences or payroll adjustments made by employers. Each instance has to be
investigated with tolerances applied to assist in resolution and this can lead to a rolling
programme of ongoing work.
S-DU Contributions — reconciliation between notional and cash value = We recommend that the Fund enhance procedures around reconciling notional contribution
(o) of contributions values (based on expected values in real time per actual pensionable pay) to actual cash
® As a result of the option to pre-pay Future and Past Service received.
“\3' Contributions, this now results in frequent, substantial year on year Furthermore, 3rd party confirmations from employers should be enhanced to include cash
variances on contributions receivable which present a challenge to values as well as expected balances per pensionable pay.
the auditor in assessing completeness of the population. Management response
Where employers have pre paid Future Service contributions in advance, the Fund
accounts for the receipts in full in the month in which they were received. As part of its
contributions monitoring process, the Fund calculates contributions due for every employer
each subsequent month based on expected employer contribution rate multiplied by actual
pensionable salary. For employers who have prepaid, this is a notional value and is not
included in the reconciliation of contributions due or in the annual accounts. Monthly cash
receipts from such employers are in respect of employee contributions only and are
reconciled to the member data submitted by employers.
The 3rd party request to employers does require confirmation of cash values and expected
balances per pensionable pay. The Fund will liaise with employers who have pre paid
contributions to ensure correct completion of the confirmations.
Controls
® High - Significant effect on control system

Medium — Effect on control system

Low — Best practice

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

B. Recommendations — West Midlands Pension Fund (continued)

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations

. Third party cash balances We recommend that the Fund sets up a separate bank account and sub ledger accounting

Audit procedures performed in relation to cash balances identified a ~ SYStem to monitor the cash balance in question.

Best practice  small cash balance being held in a Fund bank account (and Management response

accounted for using the Fund’s General Ledger system) which does e Fynd and City of Wolverhampton Council have completed the application forms

not form part of the Fund’s financial structure. required to set up a separate bank account to monitor this balance. The account is
expected to be operational from October 2020. Within the Fund’s General Ledger system,
transactions relating to this balance are allocated to a specific cost centre code to enable
monitoring and segregation from Fund transactions. The volume of these transactions is
small enough that this structure is a reasonable way to monitor and account for movements
on this balance.

g6 abed

Controls
® High - Significant effect on control system
Medium — Effect on control system
® Low - Best practice
© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Annual Audit Letter | March 2021



Commercial in confidence

66 abed

o G ra nt Tho rnto n © 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 10

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Audit and Risk Committee
21 June 2021

Report title

Accountable director
Originating service

Accountable employee(s)

Report to be/has been
considered by

External Audit Plan

Claire Nye, Director of Finance

Strategic Finance

Emma Bland Finance Business Partner

Tel 01902 553928

Email Emma.Bland2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
None

Recommendations for noting:

The Audit and Risk Committee is asked to note:

1. The Audit Plan 2020-2021 from the Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton.

Page 101




1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Purpose

To update members of the committee on the Audit Plan from the Council’s external
auditors, Grant Thornton, for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Background

As outlined in Appendix 1, the audit plan sets out the planned scope and timing of the
audit, as required by the International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 260. The
document attached is to help the Audit and Risk Committee understand the planned
scope of the external audit work, covering areas of risk, materiality and Value for Money
arrangements.

Financial implications

The following fees are outlined in the audit plan attached. There is a specific budget for
these fees within Corporate Financial Management.

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

Audit fees 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021
£000 £000 £000
Council Audit 158 198 215
Subsidiary audits:
- Wolverhampton Homes 28 28 28
Limited
- City of Wolverhampton 20 23 TBC
Housing Company Limited
- Yoo Recruit Limited 14 14 TBC
Total 220 263 TBC
Independence & non-audit services 2018-2019 2019-2020  2020-2021
£000 £000 £000
Total 23 23 23
[EB/10062021/N]

Legal implications

The legal implications are set out in the audit plan and are in compliance with the
Councils’ Constitution and all relevant legislation.

[SZ/10062021/P]
Equalities implications

There are no equality implications arising from this report.

Page 102



6.0
6.1
7.0
7.1
8.0

8.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

All other Implications

There are no other implications arising from this report.
Schedule of background papers

There are no preceding reports.

Appendices

Audit Plan

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



This version of the report is a draft. Its contents and
subject matter remain under review and its contents may

change and be expanded as part of the finalisation of
the report.
° Grant Thornton :

City of Wolverhampton Council
audit plan

Year ending 31 March 2021

L

.Sitg of Wolverhampton Council
&1 June 2021
)

GOT




Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

o

jabl

Q Jon Roberts
Key Audit Partner

O T 0117 305 7699

@ E jon.roberts@uk.gt.com

Nic Coombe
Senior Manager
T 0121232 5206

E nicola.coombe@uk.gt.com

Matthew Berrisford

Assistant Manager

T 0121232 5352

E matthew.j.berrisford@uk.gt.com

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section

Key matters

Introduction and headlines

Group audit scope and risk assessment
Significant risks identified

Otbher risks identified

Accounting estimates and related disclosures
Other matters

Progress against prior year recommendations
Materiality

Value for Money Arrangements

Risks of significant VFM weaknesses

Audit logistics and team

Audit fees

Independence and non-audit services

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and application guidance

10

i
15
16
17
18

20
21

23

24

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. It is
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Council or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Council. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Key matters

Council developments and impact of Covid 19 pandemic

The Council continues to operate in an uncertain and challenging environment due to the global pandemic, balancing service
delivery against the impact on the citizens of Wolverhampton, Council staff and their families. Covid has had, and will continue
to have a significant financial impact on the Council. It was recognised by the Council in last year’s Narrative Report that the
direct financial impact on 2019-20 was limited: the Trust’s valuer reported a material uncertainty in regards to the valuation of
properties as at 31 March 2020 due to the Covid 19 pandemic.

The Council’s 2019-20 Annual Report then went on to say that the pandemic would have a significant impact on 2020-21 and
future years across a range of Council’s services and programmes. For several years the Council has been reported significant
medium-term financial challenges and this has been exacerbated by the pandemic: the Council has suffered loss of operational

ome, and has had to deal with the allocation, distribution and provision of emergency loans and grants at sometimes
gctivelg short notice, while continuing to provide “business as usual” services such as social care and education.

«Q
@D

|'F'oﬁ‘1cmcicl| Reporting and Audit
+ Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has set out its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and the
need for auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge, and to undertake more robust testing. There is a

particular focus on estimates in 2020/21 with the introduction of ISA 540 (revised) (see pages 12 and 13 for more detail), and the
Council should anticipate greater challenge and audit scrutiny in these areas.

Accounting for grants

The Government has provided a range of financial support packages throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. These include
additional funding to support the cost of services or offset other income losses and also grant packages to be paid out to
support local businesses. There is nothing new about the accounting treatment for grants, but the Council needs to consider the
nature and terms of the various COVID-19 measures in order to determine whether there is income and expenditure to be
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) in 2020/21. There are three main considerations:

1) Where the funding is to be transferred to other parties, is the Council acting as the principal or as the agent?
2) Are there grant conditions outstanding?

3) Is the grant a specific or non-specific grant?

We have shared our publication on grant funding considerations with the Council and discussed it with the finance team who
are considering the above factors in their rationale and justification for the accounting treatment to be proposed. It is an
evolving area that we will need to react to as the audit progresses.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Our response

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to audit quality and
financial reporting in the local government sector. Our proposed
work and fee, as set further in our Audit Plan, has been agreed
with the Director of Finance.

We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting
your financial resources as part of our work in completing our
Value for Money work.

There were recommendations made in respect of previous audit
work, which can be found in our Audit Findings Repots for the
year ended 31 March 2020 both in relation to the financial
statements as well as in respect of work on arrangements to
secure VFM. We will follow up on these recommendations as part
of our work for this year.

We will continue to provide you with sector updates via our Audit
and Risk Committee updates.

We have identified an increased incentive and opportunity for
organisations in the public sector to manipulate their financial
statements due to increasing financial pressures. We have
identified a significant risk in regards to management override of
control, refer to page 8.

The Council’s pension fund net liability, as reflected in the
balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability, represents a
significant estimate in the financial statements due to the size of
the numbers involved (£615 million in the balance

sheet) and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key
assumptions. We identified a significant risk in regards to the
valuation of the pension fund net liability - refer to page 8.

The Council’s valuer reported a material uncertainty in regards
to the valuation of properties in 2019/20 due to the Covid 19
pandemic and we expect significant uncertainty will continue in
2020/21. We identified a significant risk in regards to the
valuation of properties - refer to page 9.



Commercial in confidence

Introduction and headlines

Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope
and timing of the statutory audit of the City of
Wolverhampton Council (‘the Council’) for those charged
with governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document
entitled Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). This
summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and
end and what is expected from the audited body. Our
respective responsibilities are also set out in the agreed
Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities

U issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the
body responsible for appointing us as auditor of the

@ Council.

= Scope of our audit

00 The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code
and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs] (UK). We are
responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

* Council and group’s financial statements that have been
prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance (the Audit and Risk Committee);
and

* Value for Money arrangements in place at the Council for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your
use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or the Audit and Risk Committee of your
responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Council to
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the
conduct of its business, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have
considered how the Council is fulfilling these
responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding
of the Council's business and is risk based.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Group Audit

The Council is required to prepare group financial statements that consolidate the financial information of those
subsidiaries it considers material. These are:

*  Wolverhampton Homes Limited

+ City of Wolverhampton Housing Company Limited (trading as WV Living)

Significant risks

Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial
statement error have been identified as:

* presumed risk of management override of controls

* the valuation of property, plant and equipment

* The valuation of the pension find net liability

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the
audit to you in our Audit Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality

We have determined planning materiality to be £12m (PY £12.5m) for the group and £11.9m (PY £12.4tm) for the
Council, which equates to approximately 1.35% of your prior year gross expenditure for the year. We are
obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those
charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at £695k (PY £620k).

Value for Money arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following risks
of significant weakness:

* financial resilience

* group governance



Commercial in confidence

Introduction and headlines

Audit logistics

Our planning and interim “visits” took place remotely throughout January to April and our final visit will take place from June. It is anticipated that this is likely to be remote to some
extent though we have discussed the logistics of coming out on site to discuss issues face to face with officers (ensuring all social distancing guidance is adhered to where applicable) as
required.

Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan, our Audit Findings Report and Auditor’s Annual Report. Our audit approach is detailed in Appendix A.

Our fee for the audit will be £215,710 (PY: £198,360) for the Council, subject to the Council delivering a good set of financial statements and working papers. See pages 19 and 20 for
further analysis of the proposed fee.

We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard (revised 2019) and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to
express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

60T abed

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Group audit scope and risk assessment

In accordance with ISA (UK] 600, as group auditor we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the components and the consolidation process to express an opinion on whether the group
financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Individually Level of response required

-Gomponent Significant? under ISA (UK) 600 Risks identified Planned audit approach
&itg of Yes * Seepages7to10where  Full scope audit performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP
cwvoh/erhgmpton the identified risks
Souncil pertaining to the
[N Council are detailed
<
Wolverhampton ~ Yes * Seepages7to10where  Audit of one or more classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures namely, in
Homes Limited the identified risks relation not the pension fund net liability to be performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP.
pertaining to the Group  The nature, time and extent of our involvement in the work of the separate Grant Thornton
are detailed team will begin with a discussion on risks, guidance on designing procedures,

participation in meetings, followed by the review of relevant aspects of the audit
documentation and meeting with appropriate members of management.

City of No * Seepages7to10where  Specific scope procedures on inventories to be performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP.
Wolverhampton the identified risks The nature, time and extent of our involvement in the work of the separate Grant Thornton
Housing pertaining to the Group  team will begin with a discussion on risks, guidance on designing procedures,

Company Limited are detailed participation in meetings, followed by the review of relevant aspects of the audit

documentation and meeting with appropriate members of management.

Audit scope

B Audit of the financial information of the component using component materiality

B Audit of one more classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures relating to
significant risks of material misstatement of the group financial statements

I Review of component’s financial information

B Specified audit procedures relating to significant risks of material misstatement of the
group financial statements

Analytical procedures at group level
© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk
Risk relates to Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
Risk of Group Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable Notwithstanding that we have rebutted this risk, we will still undertake a significant level of work on the Council’s
fraud in and presumed risk that revenue may be misstated revenue streams, as they are material. We will:
venui' Council due to the improper recognition of revenue. Accounting policies and sustems
‘ecognition . . . :
(glnd This Fl)r(e;lsumﬁhor;]odn. be re?ukttid if the' O|Ud't°r * evaluate the Council’s accounting policies for recognition of income and expenditure for its various income
(D:xpenditure concludges that there Is no ris ol materia streams and compliance with the CIPFA Code
P misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue
= recognition. * update our understanding of the Council’s business processes associated with accounting for income
= .
[ERY Having considered the risk factors set out in Fees, charges and other service income
ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at  «  Agree, on a sample basis, income and year end receivables from other income to invoices and cash payment
the Council, we have determined that the risk of or other supporting evidence.

fraud arising from revenue recognition can be

Taxation and non-specific grant income
rebutted, because:

* Income for national non-domestic rates and council tax is predicable and therefore we will conduct

* thereis little incentive to manipulate revenue . -
substantive analytical procedures

recognition
* For other grants we will sample test items back to supporting information and subsequent receipt,

. rtunities t ipulat . . .
opportunities to manipuiate revenue considering accounting treatment where appropriate.

recognition are very limited
We will also design tests to address the risk that income has been understated, by not being recognised in the

¢ the culture and ethical frameworks of local . .
current financial year.

authorities, including City of Wolverhampton
and its subsidiaries mean that all forms of

fraud are seen as unacceptable. Expenditure
Whilst not a presumed significant risk, we have  « pdate our understanding of the Council’s business processes associated with accounting for expenditure
had regard to Practice Note 10, which comments
that for certain public bodies, the risk of
manipulating expenditure may well be greater
than that of income. Because of this we have also We will also design tests to address the risk that expenditure has been overstated, by not being recognised in
considered and rebutted the risk of improper the current financial year.
recognition of operating expenditure

* agree, on a sample basis, expenditure and year end creditors to invoices and cash payment or other
supporting evidence

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.




Commercial in confidence

Significant risks identified

Risk

Risk relates to

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Management over-ride of
controls

obed

Group and Council

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable
presumed risk that the risk of management
over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The
Council faces external scrutiny of its spending
and this could potentially place management
under undue pressure in terms of how they
report performance.

We therefore identified management override
of control, in particular journals, management
estimates and transactions outside the course
of business as a significant risk, which was one
of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement.

We will:
* evaluate the design effectiveness of management controls over journals

* analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting high risk unusual
journals

* test high risk unusual journals made during the year and after the draft accounts stage
for appropriateness and corroboration

* gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied
made by management and consider their reasonableness

* evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant
unusual transactions. We will utilise Grant Thornton’s diagnostic IT system, Inflo, as
part of these considerations.

F¥aluation of net pension

Bund liability

Group and Council

The Council's pension fund net liability,

as reflected in its balance sheet as the net
defined benefit liability, represents a
significant estimate in the financial statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a
significant estimate due to the size of the
numbers involved and the sensitivity of the
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the
Council’s pension fund net liability as a
significant risk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of material
misstatement.

We also consider that this risk applies to the
group financial statements as in addition to
the Council, Wolverhampton Homes Limited
are also a member of the Local Government
Pension Scheme and therefore include a net
defined liability on its balance sheet, which

includes significant estimates.

We will:

* update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management
to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and
evaluate the design of the associated controls;

* evaluate the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an
actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

* assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the
Council’s pension fund valuation;

* assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to
the actuary to estimate the liability;

* test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes
to the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

* undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions
made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and
performing any additional procedures suggested within the report; and

* obtain assurances from the auditor of the West Midlands Pension Fund as to the
controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; contributions
data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets
valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Significant risks identified

Risk

Risk relates to

Reason for risk identification

Commercial in confidence

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of land
and buildings

¢TT abed

Group and Council

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment should be performed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially
different from those that would be determined at the end of the
reporting period. The Council revalues its land and buildings on a rolling
basis to ensure that the carrying value is not materially different from
the current value or fair value (for surplus assets] at the financial
statements date.

This valuation represents a significant estimate by management in the
financial statements due to the size of the numbers involved and the
sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We have therefore identified the valuation of land and buildings
revaluations and impairments as a risk of special audit consideration.

We do not consider this risk to apply to the other components within the
group as neither Wolverhampton Homes Limited or City of
Wolverhampton Housing Company Limited has land and buildings,
which it carries as property, plant and equipment.

We will:

* evaluate management’s processes and assumptions for the
calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to the evaluation
experts and the scope of their work

* evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation
expert

¢ write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuations were
carried out

* engage our own valuer to assess the instructions to the Council’s
valuer, the Council’s valuer’s report and the assumptions that
underpin the valuation

test, on a sample basis, revaluations made during the year to ensure
they have been input correctly into the Council's asset register

* evaluate the assumptions made by management for any assets not
revalued during the year and how management has satisfied
themselves that these are not materially different to current value.

As a consequence of the pandemic, whereby the valuer may not have
physically observed the assets we will consider how the valuer is
assessing for impairment and/or obsolescence in the absence of a
physical inspection

Prior year considerations

A significant amount of work was undertaken as part of our audit
challenge involving a significant amount of time and effort both on our
part as well as on the part of the Council’s estates team, finance team
and valuer., which resulted in a number of adjusted and unadjusted
misstatements being reported. The Council is undertaking an increased
amount of its own quality assurance processes for this year and future
years such that any errors are identified and resolved prior to the audit
process. This includes challenging the valuations as they are received b
identifying any unusual year on year movements in order that they are
able to understand the reasons for any variances.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Other risks identified

Risk relates

Commercial in confidence

Risk to Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
Operatin Council Non-pay expenses on other goods and services also represents a significant percentage of We will
P 9 pay exp g P g P 9
Expenses the Council's operating expenses. * evaluate the Council’s accounting policies for recognition of
non-pay expenditure streams for appropriateness
Management uses judgement to estimate accruals of un-invoiced costs. pay exp PProp
* gain an understanding of the Council’s system for accounting
We therefore identified completeness of non-pay expenses as a risk requiring particular for non-pay expenditure
audit attention. * apply elevated risk procedures and test a sample of balances
included within trade and other payables
We are also op'p'lglng SpeC.IfIC focus to the. occurrence of expenditure and existence of +  testa sample of payments immediately prior to and after the
payables, to mitigate the risk that expenditure has been overstated to take advantage of car end to ensure that appropriate cut-off has been applied
the additional funding which has been available to the Council during the 2020/21 J pprop 1 appied,
financial uear and therefore that the expenditure has been recognised in the
U year. correct period.
g * apply elevated risk procedures and test a sample of
D expenditure to ensure it has been recorded accurately and is
- recognised in the appropriate financial accounting period.
=
=
Level 3 Council The Council have an investment in Birmingham Airport Holdings (BAHL) that We will
Investments - is valued as a Level 3 investment. By their nature Level 3 investment valuations lack +  evaluate management’s process in determining the fair value
B.irminghom observable inputs. This is because these shares are not quoted on a stock exchange and through use of an expert
Airport are valued using non-observable data.

In order to determine the value, management commission a review to ascertain the
valuation of the investment as at the balance sheet date using an earnings based
approach. Earnings multiples are based on an average of the lower-quartile earnings and
transaction

multiples for the industry, in this case, airports.

The valuation of the Council’s shareholding in Birmingham Airport Holdings Limited
therefore represents an estimate by management in the financial statements due to the
sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified completeness of non-pay expenses as a risk requiring particular
audit attention.

appoint our own internal experts to review the valuation and
appropriateness of the methodology applied

consider the reasonableness of the estimate

review the adequacy of the disclosure of the estimate in the
financial statements.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates and related disclosures

The Financial Reporting Introduction
Council issued an updoted Under ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) auditors are required to
. understand and assess an entity’s internal controls over accounting estimates,
ISA (UK) 540 (revised): including:
AUd’t’nQ ACCOU”U”Q * The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s

Estimates and Related financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
Disclosures which includes *  How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or
s ope knowledge related to accounting estimates;
Tgnificant enhancements
&q respect of the audit risk
®ssessment process for
= . .
paccounting estimates.
ol

* How the entity’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks
relating to accounting estimates;

* The entity’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates;

* The entity’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and

We identified * How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

recommendations in our As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the

2019/20 audit in relation to role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important where
s . . the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant

the Council’s estimation judgement.

process for valuation of Specifically do Audit and Risk Committee members:

land and bU”diHQS, which + Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make

have been discussed on the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

page Q. * Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including

the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by
management; and

* Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates and related disclosures

Additional information that will be required

To ensure our compliance with this revised auditing standard, we will be
requesting further information from management and those charged with
governance during our audit for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Based on our knowledge of the Council we have identified the following material
accounting estimates for which this is likely to apply:

Valuations of land and buildings, council dwellings and investment properties
Depreciation

Year end provisions and accruals, specifically for demand led services such
as Adult’s and Children’s services

Credit loss and impairment allowances

9TT afed -

Valuation of defined benefit net pension fund liabilities

* Fair value estimates

+ Valuation of level 2 and level 3 (Birmingham Airport) investments
* Valuation of guarantees

The Council’s Information systems

In respect of the Council’s information systems we are required to consider how
management identifies the methods, assumptions and source data used for each
material accounting estimate and the need for any changes to these. This
includes how management selects, or designs, the methods, assumptions and
data to be used and applies the methods used in the valuations.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

When the models used include increased complexity or subjectivity, as is the
case for many valuation models, auditors need to understand and assess the
controls in place over the models and the data included therein. Where
adequate controls are not in place we may need to report this as a significant
control deficiency and this could affect the amount of detailed substantive
testing required during the audit.

If management has changed the method for making an accounting estimate
we will need to fully understand management’s rationale for this change. Any
unexpected changes are likely to raise the audit risk profile of this accounting
estimate and may result in the need for additional audit procedures.

We are aware that the Council uses management experts in deriving some of
its more complex estimates, e.g. asset valuations and pensions liabilities.
However, it is important to note that the use of management experts does not
diminish the responsibilities of management and those charged with
governance to ensure that:

* Al accounting estimates and related disclosures included in the financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
financial reporting framework, and are materially accurate;

+ There are adequate controls in place at the Council (and where applicable
its service provider or management expert) over the models, assumptions
and source data used in the preparation of accounting estimates.



Commercial in confidence

Estimation uncertainty

_81der ISA (UK) 540 we are required to consider the following:

Q® How management understands the degree of estimation uncertainty related to each
% accounting estimate; and

pa How management address this estimation uncertainty when selecting their point
= estimate.

For example, how management identified and considered alternative, methods, assumptions
or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why
these alternatives were rejected in favour of the point estimate used.

The revised standard includes increased emphasis on the importance of the financial
statement disclosures. Under ISA (UK) 640 (Revised December 2018), auditors are required to
assess whether both the accounting estimates themselves and the related disclosures are
reasonable.

Where there is a material uncertainty, that is where there is a significant risk of a material
change to the estimated carrying value of an asset or liability within the next year, there
needs to be additional disclosures. Note that not all material estimates will have a material
uncertainty and it is also possible that an estimate that is not material could have a risk of
material uncertainty.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Where there is material estimation uncertainty, we would expect the financial statement
disclosures to detail:

*  What the assumptions and uncertainties are;
* How sensitive the assets and liabilities are to those assumptions, and why;

* The expected resolution of the uncertainty and the range of reasonably possible
outcomes for the next financial year; and

* An explanation of any changes made to past assumptions if the uncertainly is
unresolved.

Planning enquiries

As part of our planning risk assessment procedures we have requested management to
provide information as to how estimates are drawn up, above and beyond what is
documented in the “informing the audit risk assessment”, which was presented to the Audit
and Risk Committee at its last meeting on 8 March. As a separate exercise an Accounting
Estimate Management Summary was presented, which set out how the Council had
responded to questions raised on their key estimates. To support the understanding of those
charged with governance, external experts had been invited to the Committee meeting from
Burton Knowles and JLL to discuss the approach taken. The Director of Pensions will be in
attendance at the Committee meeting in June to discuss the defined benefit pension liability.

Further information

Further details on the requirements of ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018) can be found in
the auditing standard on the Financial Reporting Council’s website:

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0faé9c03-49ec-49ae-a8c-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-
540 Revised-December-2018 final.pdf




Commercial in confidence

Other matters

Other work Other material balances and transactions
In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
audit responsibilities, as follows: misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each material

class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and
transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will not be as
extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

*  We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement to check that they are
consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and our knowledge
of the Council.

We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual Governance
Statement are in line with requirements set by CIPFA. GOiﬂg concern

We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government

. . . . A ditors, ired to obtai fficient iat dit evid ding, and
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions. s auditors, we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding, an

conclude on:

8TT-obed

We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required, . . . .
. . * whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists; and
including:

* the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in

— giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2020/21 financial the preparation of the financial statements.

statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to the
2020/21 financial statements; The Public Audit Forum has been designated by the Financial Reporting Council as a “SORP-
making body” for the purposes of maintaining and updating Practice Note 10: Audit of
financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (PN 10). It
is intended that auditors of public sector bodies read PN 10 in conjunction with (ISAs) (UK].

— issuing a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the Council
under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act).

— application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law

under section 28 or a judicial review under section 31 of the Act PN 10 has recently been updated to take account of revisions to ISAs (UK), including ISA (UK)

570 on going concern. The revisions to PN 10 in respect of going concern are important and
— issuing an advisory notice under section 29 of the Act mark a significant departure from how this concept has been audited in the public sector in
the past. In particular, PN 10 allows auditors to apply a ‘continued provision of service
approach’ to auditing going concern, where appropriate. Applying such an approach should
enable us to increase our focus on wider financial resilience (as part of our VfM work]) and
ensure that our work on going concern is proportionate for public sector bodies. We will
review the Council’s arrangements for securing financial sustainability as part of our Value
for Money work and provide a commentary on this in our Auditor’s Annual Report (see page
17).

*  We certify completion of our audit.

We will also need to identify whether any material uncertainties in respect of going concern
have been reported for the Council’s subsidiaries. If such a situation arises, we will consider

our audit response for the group.
© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Progress against prior year audit
recommendations

We identified the following issues in our 2019/20 audit of the group’s financial statements, which resulted in 4 recommendations being reported in our 2019/20 Audit Findings Report. We have
followed up on the implementation of our recommendations as noted below.

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue
In progress  Annual Governance Statement We will keep this recommendation open until such time as we have seen the
The Annual Governance Statement is required to set out the draft Annual Governance Statement, and concluded on whether this
governance arrangements in respect of the group, and not just the recommendation has been acted upon.
Council. We recommend that management keep its group boundary under
o review and ensure that future Annual Governance Statements include
Q details in respect of all consolidated entities within the group accounts.
«
® In progress  Related Parties We will keep this recommendation open until such time as we have seen the
— The Council has historically over-disclosed in its related parties note, draft financial statements, and concluded on whether this recommendation
= leading to he risk that material and pertinent information is being obscured. has been acted upon.
© We recommend that the Council enhance its closedown procedures to
ensure that only related parties meeting the definitions are considered, and
only those transactions deemed to be material with such parties are
disclosure
In progress  Valuation process We are aware from discussions with the finance team that challenge and
A number of amendments were made as a result of our audit findings in this enhanced scrutiny has been undertaken as part of the valuation process.
area. . . . However, we will keep this recommendation open until such time as we have
We recommend that the Council increase the omount.of its own quality completed our audit work in this area, and concluded on whether this
assurance processes for f'utu.rfa years t(.) under.stond dlffer(?nt recommendation has been acted upon.
methodologies and any significant variances in the valuations, such that
any errors are identified and resolved prior to the audit progress.
In progress  Additions to Council Dwellings and Other Land and Buildings Comments above apply.

The valuation reports for these assets did not originally reflect capital
expenditure made during the year, meaning the value of such assets
recognised on the Balance Sheet was inconsistent with the valuation as
reported by the Council's external valuer. We recommend that in future the
Council seek to inform its valuers of any such changes in year to determine
the impact of any on the valuation of assets as at the balance sheet date.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Materiality

The concept of materiality

Materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies
not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable
accounting practice and applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if
they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Toteriality for planning purposes

e have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross expenditure of the
(roup and Council for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark. Materiality at the
pRlanning stage of our audit is £12.0m (PY £12.6m) for the group and £11.9m (PY £12.4m) for the Council, which
[esiuates to approximately 1.35% of your forecast gross expenditure for the year. We reconsider planning
@ateriality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we become aware of facts and circumstances that

would have caused us to make a different determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit and Risk Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit and Risk Committee any unadjusted
misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK)
‘Communication with those charged with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or
misstatements other than those which are “clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK]
defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate
and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of the group and Council, we
propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £695k
(PY £620K).

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the audit, we will
consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit and Risk Committee to assist it in
fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Prior year gross operating

costs

£893m group
£884m Council

m Prior year gross operating

costs

Commercial in confidence

Materiality

£12.0m

group financial
statements
materiality

(PY: £12.5m)
£11.9m

Council financial
statements
materiality

(PY: £12.1tm)

£0.595m

Misstatements
reported to the
Audit and Risk
Committee

(PY: £0.620m)



Commercial in confidence

Value for Money arrangements

Revised approach to Value for Money

work for 2020/21 (5%
Y
On 1 April 2020, the National Audit Office introduced a

new Code of Audit Practice which comes into effect from

audit year 2020/21. The Code introduced a revised Imzro;/;ngt.economg, efficiency Financial Sustainability Governance
. and effectiveness

approach to the audit of Value for Money. (VFM) Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that

There are three main changes arising from the NAO’s Arrangements for'lmprc?vmg the bodg can cc?nfmue to dehver. the P9dg mokes gppropnqte.
~®w approach: way the body delivers its services. services. This includes planning decisions in the right way. This

Q ' This includes arrangements for resources to ensure adequate includes arrangements for budget
(& Anew set of key criteria, covering financial understanding costs and finances and maintain setting and management, risk

(D sustainability, governance and improvements in delivering efficiencies and sustainable levels of spending management, and ensuring the
= economy, efficiency and effectiveness improving outcomes for service over the medium term (3-5 years) body makes decisions based on
N users. appropriate information

More extensive reporting, with a requirement on the
auditor to produce a commentary on arrangements
across all of the key criteria, rather than the current
‘reporting by exception’ approach

()

+ The replacement of the binary (qualified /
unqualified] approach to VFM conclusions, with far
more sophisticated judgements on performance, as
well as key recommendations on any significant
weaknesses in arrangements identified during the
audit.

The Code require auditors to consider whether the body
has put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. When reporting on these arrangements, the
Code requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria.
These are as set out below:

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Risks of significant VFM weaknesses

As part of our planning work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the body’s arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources that we needed to perform further procedures on.
The risks we have identified are detailed in the first table below, along with the further procedures we will perform. We may
need to make recommendations following the completion of our work. The potential different types of recommendations we
-gould make are set out in the second table overleaf.

jab)

Risks of significant weakness

Frhose risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that
oper arrangements are not in place at the body to deliver value for money.

A

Financial sustainability

The Authority has historically managed its finances well, but as noted in “Key Matters”
on page 3 for several years the Council has been reported significant medium-term
financial challenges and this has been exacerbated by the pandemic: the Council has
suffered loss of operational income, and has had to deal with the allocation,
distribution and provision of emergency loans and grants at sometimes relatively short
notice, while continuing to provide “business as usual” services such as social care
and education. As reported to Cabinet on 17 February 2021, that while the budget for
2012-22 is in balance within the use of general reserves, a further £25.4 million needs to
be identified for 2022-23 rising to £29.6 million over the medium term in order to
address the projected budget deficit.

The Council will need to maintain focus on delivering its budget, and be agile in the
face of any continuing impacts of the pandemic.

We will review the Council's Medium Term Financial Statement and financial
monitoring reports and assess the assumptions being used and savings being
achieved.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Group governance

In our prior year audit findings report we raised a number of recommendations for the
Council to consider as part of its ongoing investment in and work with City of
Wolverhampton Housing Company Limited.

We are aware that in addition to considering the action required in relation to these
recommendations the Council is also heeding the results of the public interest reports
that have been issued recently, (Nottingham City Council (August 2020), the London
Borough of Croydon (October 2020}, and Northampton Borough Council (January
2021), which are the first issued since 2016 Lessons from recent Public Interest Reports |
Grant Thornton).

Along with other weaknesses, the PIRs have drawn attention to failings in the
governance arrangements where subsidiaries and associated entities are involved as
well as a lack of understanding of how to manage financial and commercial
uncertainty and risk in the medium to long term.

We will follow up action taken by the Council in response to the recommendations
made as well as assessing the governance arrangements in its place with its
associated entities.



Commercial in confidence

Risks of significant VFM weaknesses

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on
risks of significant weakness, as follows:

Statutory recommendation

@ Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. A recommendation under schedule 7
requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant
weaknesses in arrangements to secure value for money they should make
recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the body.
We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

c¢T abed

Improvement recommendation

These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in
place at the body, but are not made as a result of identifying significant
weaknesses in the body’s arrangements

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Audit logistics and team

Planning and
risk assessment

Audit
and Risk
committee
March

Interim audit ‘
January to April
Progress
report

Jon Roberts, Key Audit Partner

Key contact for senior management and Audit and Risk
Committee. Jon will oversee the implementation and
delivery of the audit and be the key contract for senior
management and the Audit and Risk Committee. He will
meet with the Council’s senior management including the
Director of Finance to help identify risks for the audit and
provide advice and assistance as required.

Nic Coombe, Audit Manager

Nic will work with senior members of the finance team
ensuring testing is delivered and any accounting issues are
addressed on a timely basis. She will attend Audit and Risk
Committees with Jon, and supervise Matt in leading the
audit team. Nic will undertake reviews of the team’s work
and draft clear, concise and understandable reports.

Matthew Berrisford, Audit Incharge

Matt will be responsible for the “on-site” audit team management and will be
the day-to-day point of contact for the finance team. He will be responsible for
ensuring the audit fieldwork is complete.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Audit Audit Audit
and Risk and Risk and Risk
committee committee committee
June September TBC

‘ Year end audit . ‘
June - to September

Audit Findings

Audit Plan Report/Draft  Audit Auditor's
s . Annual
Auditor’s Annual opinion
Report
Report

Audited body responsibilities

Where audited bodies do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this does
not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby
disadvantaging other audits. Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that
agreed due to a body not meeting its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on
site. Similarly, where additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a body not
meeting its obligations we are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit to the agreed
timescales. In addition, delayed audits will incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements
To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to ensure that you:

* produce draft financial statements of good quality by the agreed timetable you have
agreed with us, including all notes, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance
Statement

* ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in
accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with you

* ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are
reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples for
testing

* ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise agreed)
the planned period of the audit

* respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.



Audit fees

In 2018, PSAA awarded a contract of audit for City of Wolverhampton Council to begin with effect from 2018/19. The scale fee for 2018/19 was
set by PSAA at £145,860. Since that time, there have been a number of developments, particularly in relation to the revised Code and ISA’s
which are relevant for the 2020/21 audit.

As referred to on page 17, the 2020/21 Code introduces a revised approach to our VFM work. This requires auditors to produce a commentary
on arrangements across all of the key criteria, rather than the current ‘reporting by exception’ approach. Auditors now have to make far more
sophisticated judgements on performance, as well as issue key recommendations if any significant weaknesses in arrangements are
identified during the audit. We will be working with the NAO and other audit firms to discuss and share learning in respect of common issues
arising across the sector.

e new approach will be more challenging for audited bodies, involving discussions at a wider and more strategic level. Both the reporting,
ﬁd the planning and risk assessment which underpins it, will require more audit time, delivered through a richer skill mix than in previous
ears. Our estimate is that for your audit, this will result in an increased fee of £26,000. This is in line with increases we are proposing at all
ur local audits. Members may be aware that MHCLG is currently responding to the findings of the Redmond Review into local audit. As part
Iﬁ this, Government has recognised the need to provide additional funding to local authorities to support increases in audit fees.

M ditionally, across all sectors and firms, the FRC has set out its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and the need

r auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge and to undertake additional and more robust testing, as noted in the number

of revised ISA’s issued by the FRC that are applicable to audits of financial statements commencing on or after 15 December 2019, as detailed
in Appendix 1.

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard to audit quality and public sector financial
reporting. We have engaged an audit expert to improve the level of assurance we require for property valuations estimates, which has been
included in our proposed audit fee. Our proposed work and fee for 2020/21, as set out below, is detailed overleaf.

Actual Fee 2018/19 Actual Fee 2019/20 Proposed fee 2020/21

City of Wolverhampton Council Audit £158,360 £198,360 £215,710
Audit of subsidiary company Wolverhampton Homes Limited £27,675 £28,285 £28,285
Audit of subsidiary company City of Wolverhampton Housing £20,000 £22,500 TBC
Company Limited

Audit of subsidiary company Yoo Recruit Limited £13,500 £14,000 TBC
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £219,535 £263,145 TBC

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

Assumptions

In setting these fees, we have assumed that

the Council will:

* prepare a good quality set of accounts,
supported by comprehensive and well
presented working papers which are
ready at the start of the audit

* provide appropriate analysis, support
and evidence to support all critical
judgements and significant judgements
made during the course of preparing
the financial statements

* provide early notice of proposed
complex or unusual transactions which
could have a material impact on the
financial statements.

Relevant professional standards

In preparing our fee estimate, we have had
regard to all relevant professional
standards, including paragraphs 4.1 and
4.2 of the FRC’s Ethical Standard (revised
2019) which stipulate that the Engagement
Lead (Key Audit Partner] must set a fee
sufficient to enable the resourcing of the

audit with partners and staff with
appropriate time and skill to deliver an
audit to the required professional and
Ethical standards.



Commercial in confidence

Audit fees - detailed analysis

Scale fee published by PSAA £145,860

Ongoing increases to scale fee first identified in 2019/20

Raising the bar/regulatory factors £9,000
_lE]nhanced audit procedures for Property, Plant and Equipment £9,350
&nhcnced audit procedures for Pensions £3,500
gecurring element of 2019/20 fee £167,710

N
lc\ﬁlew issues for 2020/21

Additional work on Value for Money (VfM) under new NAO Code £26,000

Increased audit requirements of revised ISAs £17,000

Local risk factors £5,000

Proposed increase to agreed recurring 2019/20 fee £48,000

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £215,710

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Independence and non-audit services

Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant

facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm

or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to
discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we
make additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence
as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with
e Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard (Revised 2019) and we as a firm, and
goch covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective
Qpinion on the financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the
Mational Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note Ol issued in May 2020 which sets out
Fedpplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

<Ye confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of
the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant
Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council.

Other services
The following other services provided by Grant Thornton were identified.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be
undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are
consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. Any
changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services
by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member
Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

* Note that all fees noted are those charged in respect of 2019-20 as the equivalent fees for
2020-21 are yet to be determined.

There are no non-audit related services identified.

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Fees
Service £*

Threats

Safeguards

Audit related

Certification 2,750
of Housing

Capital

receipts

grant

Self-Interest
(because
thisis a
recurring
fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not
considered a significant threat to independence as the
fee for this work in comparison to the total fee for the
audit of £251,710 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed
fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to
an acceptable level.

Certification 4,500
of Teachers

Pension

Return

Self-Interest
(because
thisis a
recurring
fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not
considered a significant threat to independence as the
fee for this work in comparison to the total fee for the
audit of £251,710 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed
fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to
an acceptable level.

Certification 16,000
of Housing

Benefit

Claim

Self-Interest
(because
thisis a
recurring
fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not
considered a significant threat to independence as the
fee for this work in comparison to the total fee for the
audit of £251,710 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed
fee and there is no contingent element to it. These
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to
an acceptable level.




Commercial in confidence

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and

application guidance

FRC revisions to Auditor Standards and associated application guidance

The following Auditing Standards and associated application guidance that were applicable to 19/20 audits, have been revised or updated by the FRC, with additional

requirements for auditors for implementation in 2020/21 audits and beyond.

Date of revision

Application
to 2020/21
Audits

530(3 (UK) 1 - Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and other Assurance and Related
(SBervice Engagements

November 2019

=
NBA (UK) 200 - Overall Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with Internationall
O8tandards on Auditing (UK)

January 2020

ISA (UK] 220 - Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements

November 2019

ISA (UK) 230 - Audit Documentation

January 2020

ISA (UK) 240 - The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements

January 2020

ISA (UK] 250 Section A - Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements

November 2019

ISA (UK) 250 Section B - The Auditor’s Statutory Right and Duty to Report to Regulators od Public Interest Entities and Regulators
of Other Entities in the Financial Sector

November 2019

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and
application guidance continued

Application to

Date of revision 2020/21 Audits
ISA (UK] 260 - Communication With Those Charged With Governance January 2020 o
ISA (UK] 315 - Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement Through Understanding of the Entity and Its July 2020
Environment
_IUSA (UK) 500 - Audit Evidence January 2020 o
jab)
Q
(liSA (UK) 540 - Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures December 2018
X o
©
ISA (UK]) 570 - Going Concern September 2019
ISA (UK) 580 - Written Representations January 2020
ISA (UK] 600 - Special considerations - Audits of Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of Component Auditors) November 2019 o
ISA (UK] 620 - Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert November 2019
ISA (UK) 700 - Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements January 2020 o

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Appendix 1: Revised Auditor Standards and
application guidance continued

Application to

Date of revision 2020/21 Audits
ISA (UK] 701 - Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report January 2020 o
ISA (UK] 720 - The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Other Information November 2019 °
ractice Note 10: Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom December 2020 o

0ST abed

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



TET abed

O Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meetings
	5 Accounting Estimates for the West Midlands Pension Fund
	6 Assessment of Going Concern Status
	Appendix 1 for Assessment of Going Concern Status

	7 Review of Compliance with the CIPFA Financial Management Code
	Appendix 1 for Review of Compliance with the CIPFA Financial Management Code

	8 Annual Governance Statement
	9 Grant Thornton 2019 - 2020 Annual Audit Letter
	City of Wolverhampton Council - 2019-20 LG Annual Audit Letter

	10 Grant Thornton 2020 - 2021 Audit Plan
	Appendix - 2020-2201 City of Wolverhampton Council - Audit plan


